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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED X1 AUGUST 2022

The Direclors present thisir annual report togather with the financial slatemernts and audita's repart of the
chasitabla company for the year 1 Seplember 2021 1o 31 August 2022, The annual regert serves the purposes of
both a busteas’ report. and a directors’ report ard strategic resar ender company |aw,

The Trust operates two Church of England acadamies and thres communiy academias for pupile aged 2-11
years, sarving communities in Sunderdand, Washington and Hartlepoal, admitting pupils who are wholly or mainly
drawn fram the areas in which the schocks are situated. The s=adermiss pravida education for pupils of different
abdities. The academies have a curriculum gatisfying the requirements of Section 1 Acadarmiss Act 2010 (e
and palanced cumiculum). The academizs are ol the heart of the communities. wiarking closely in parinecship
with 2l siakehclders and promoting British values

The Trust also is 8 D'E designated ‘Cerdra of Excellence’ Teaching Schaal Hub for the ragion Sunderand South
Tynesida & Gateshead and also works across the North East in this rala

The scaderses combinad guall capacity 151,122 inchuding nurseny and had a rofl of 1038 pupils in the school
cenzus on 18 May 2022

5L Helen's Primary School joined the Trost, conuenting from mairained school status on 1 May 2022

Halley Fark joined the Trust on 1 July 2022, Irom being a standalone empty MAT, Acer Leamning Trust merging
indo aur Trus

Pugils are admitted in sccordance with our Admessions Policy which & ratified annually by the Beard of Directars,
Managament of Admissions is delegalad to the Local Gaverning Body for each schoal and each schiosl has 22
ewn admissions policy, sopieved by the Board

Structure, governance and management
Conetitutian

The Trust is a company limited by guarantes and an exempt chacty, The charitable COMpany's memorandun
and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Trust The Diraciors of Morthasn Lighis

Lesming Trug! afe alsa the directsds of the chasilsble company for the purposes of comgany law. The charisble
company operates as Morthern Lights Learning Trust

Details of tha Drectors who sersd during the peas and to the date thess accaunis a2e approved S@ included in
tha Raferance and administative datails on page 1,

Maembars' llability

Esch member of the chantable company undartakes to contribule o the sssets of tha chantable company in Ha
event of 4 being wound up while they are a member, ar within ene year alier {hay caase 1o be & member, sush

amount &3 may o0& réquirad. nol excesding E10, for the dabls and lanldies conlracied before thay ceasad o ba
B M

Directors’ Inclamnities

Diractors banefit frem indemnity insurance under the Department of Education's risk protaction arrangement
(RPA) which by virtee of any rule of law would olnenvise attach 1o them in respect of any regligence, dafaull or
breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in ralation 1o the Trust, providad that any such
Insurance shall not extend o any claim anising from any act or amission which the Diractars knew 1o ba a breach
of trus! or breach of duty and provided also that any such instance shall rot extend to the costs of any
unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the Directors wn their capacity as Deeciors of the
Trust. The indemnity & unlimided.
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (COMNTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED M AUGUST 2022

Structure, governance and managemeant {continued)

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Directors

Mambarship is determined in accordance with jhe cempositon sat oul in Aricle 12 onwards, In accordance with
the Articles, (he Academy Trus! I8 comprised as follvws

* S Members — 1 of whom is the Chair of tha Board of Diraclors
= O Directors - 1 of whom is the CED

The Mambers are responsible for appainting the Directors in discussion with the body they represant in
accardance with the compasition sel out In Article 45 onwards. When vacancies arise, the Mambers a0 able to
appoint Direclars where their skills and expentise are deamed bensfical o trust aperations. An application and
dua dilgence process will be undedaken |o ensure any future board members share the ethos and values of the
Trist and to ensure their appaintmant will bring added value fo the trust board. Directors may approach patasijal
Directors whase skills appear lo meet the requirements of the skils audil, The parson applying ta ba & Dirsctor
will complate a1 application. The Cheer of the Board will review Inis appiication and nominate the applicant i the
members. whera appropriate. The term of offica for any Director shall be 4 years. save that this tme limi shall
not apply to the CEQ or any post heid ex-oMcio. Subject 1o remaining afigible to be & particular type of Direcaer,
any Direclor may be re-appainted or re-elected.

The aficles of association requre there 1o be a mircmum of thrae Dreckits 1 ba responsible far the statutory
and constiutional affairs of the Trust and s management
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2022

Structure, governance and managemant [cantinuad)

Palicivs and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Directars

Al Owarters are provided wilh an indycton pack which provides tham with an overview of Nartham Lightg
Leaming Trusl. and sverview of the academies in the Trust, an understanding of chanity aspacts, an
urderstanding of the role of & Director, expectations of the role and relevant policies, The decumentatian
priovided will always includa

I gOWErnance siruckurg
o ferms of relarence

schame of delegatian

ortcles of assodation

Trust deveiopment plan

annual calendar

latast Ofsiad repons ler gach of cur academing

Istest finaresal accounts

latest approved 3-year budget

Acadermy Trust Handbook

NLLT Financial Procedures Policy

=3 The Essenlial Trustes: What you naed 1o know” and Chanfies and ch ariby frusiees — an induction far
school governors

« [OE Governance Handbook

s [slas F'FI'I'!-I:IFI-'I'B

= MLLT Code of Condisct

* Relevant Govemancs HandbookDFE documantation

The training and induction provided for new Oirectors depanas on ther ewisling expenence 5o additional
decumaniation may be provided where nacessany,

Murthem Lights Learning Trust Directars have had sccess fo Confederation of Sckas! Trusts [CET) Training,

briefings and masterclasses this year alongside a membarship of NGA. b5 ansre ey are able bo kesp up (g
dats with all iraning
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS REPORT {CONTINUED)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 34 AUGLST 20323
Structure, governance and management (cantinued)

Organiaatianal structure

The Trust's unified management structure Fas besn reviawed during 2021-22 and consisis of 4 |avels

Board of Directors

CED and COFO (previously CFO)

Exacutive Leader Team (CEQ. COFQ. Headieachers)
S@nior Leadership Taams (SLT)

The Directoes ara responsible for strategic. financial, HR. estates, educationsl and govannance responsiolities
Inchading delarmning palicy, adopting annual improvemant plans following seff-avaluaton reviews, monitoring
ine practices and procedures adoptec by the Trust celamining strategic direction of the Trust, fisk
Managamant, povermance and sendor alaff appointments. They delegates the day-lo-day oparatanal managament
to the CEQ, COFD. Headteachers and SLT teama who follow poficias detsrminad and adoplad by the Direciars.

The CEQ. COFQ, Headweachers and Dieclors are reaponsible for the autharisation of spending within agresd
bidgels as stated in the Scheme of Delegation and Finanss Palcy and the appainiment of staff

The Chief Operasions and Finance Offiger is responsicle for the managament of the financial HYSIEME. SOUTCing
additional funas and ensunng efficient and effeclive use of resources. The Chigt Cparations and Finance Officer
I8 resgansible for he autharisalion of spanding up to agreed Iimits as staled in tha Schemea of Dalegation and
Financial Procedures Policy

The Sanior Leadership Team in Benedict Bisess CE Academy consists of the Headieacher, Deputy
Headteazher and twa Assistant Headteachers, Hart Primary and 51 Peter's Etwick Coft Frimary School have 3
shared leadarahip team which consists of a Headieacher and two Assistant Headteachers, St Helen's Senior
Leadership Team consists of Haadteachor, Deputy Hoadieacrher snd Assiztant Headteacher Halley Park Seniar
Leadership Team consisis of Headmacher, Cepuly Headteachar pnd Assistan! Headeackher. The Serior
Leadarship Team are responsibia for ait elements of Teaching and Learning in thar schools

Middia laader network maetings were established in 202021 and have conlinued to be devetoped thraughou!
2021-22. In these meetings middle leaders fram all schaals wark callabaratively to exglong the curmculem and
shara best practice. This has ensured that the infent of the cumiculum |s shared across the Trust and
mplamenled in each school that best suils the indwidua! schoal and their communiias,

Arrangemants for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnal

The Dwreciors ravew the pay and remuneration policy annually followmg the guidance of

* Schoal Teachers Pay and Condilians (STPC), and
* National Agreement on Pay and Conditfans of Senvice for Local Government Sarvicas (Grasn Book)

This applias 1o 1he Trust kay management personnel and takes ina account any benchmarks, paramelars or
eriteria used in sesting their pay, Annual Performance Managament reviews [external and internal) recommeand
pay awards to tha Directors who decide any pay awards within the identified pay range for individuals. Agdtianal
responsibiiies are also taken inta acsaunt
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NORTHERM LIGHTE LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Structurs, gavernance and management {continued)

Trade union facility time

Thare were no Redevani Union Officials during the accounting periad, therafare no paid trade union sctivibes
were underfaken and no working me was given as facdily tima or any cosie incurred, Instesd the Trust pays indo
& schama provided by tha kol auihority

Related partiss and other connected charities and organisations

Whera any Di'eciors declare an intasest procedures are in place 1o sddress this. The Trest have adoptad a
policy such that whare any interests are declared, the Direcior would remave themselves frem {he decision-
making process

There has been one related party trarsachion within the accounting pencd. P Glark is a partner of Jacksans Law
who provided HR and employment advice under SLA to the Trust, Thess sarvices were provided at cost in the
accounting perisd

Business Interests are declared on the website and further detall of transactiona during the year can be found in
Naots 27,

Thjectives and activities
Ohbjecis and aims

The principal obyective and activity of the chariable comgany, The Northarn Lights Lesrning Trusl, & to provide
outstanding education far puplls of all abilities between the ages of 2-11, In accordance with the Articles of
Associalion, the charable company has adopted & “Scheme of Governance” approved by the Secratary of Slata
for Educetion; to advance for the public penefil educaton in the United Kingdom, in particular but witheul
prejudice to the generality of the fasegaing by establishing, maintaining, carrying en, managing and develaping
Academies which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which shall include:

I Church af England schools designated as such which shatl b condueted in accordance with tha prnciples
practices and tanets af the Church of England both generally and in particular i refation to arranging for

religious aducation and daiy acls of worship, and having regard 1o any advice issued by the Diocesan Board
of Educalion; and

i, Othar acadamias whelher with or without & designaled religious character; byl in relation o eash of the
Atademiss to recognze and supged their indnvidual ethos, whather or not designated Chyrch of England

The Trust Cantral Team is based in Sundaerland, where the original school, Benediet Bizcop CE Acadamy s
situaled. Two schoods in tha Trust, Hart Primary Scheool and 51 Peter's Elwick CofE Primary School joénad the
trustiin 2018, 5t Helen's Primary joined May 2022 and Holley Park joined July F0TE. Benedict Biscop has an
Dulstanding Oifsted judgamant (2012). Harl Primary has an Dutstanding Ofsted judgemant (2016), 51 Peters
Elwick has 2 Good with Quistanding for Leadershyp & Managament & Behaviour & Sefaty (2015). Hallay Park
hag a Good judgement (2018) and 3t Helen's has 8 Good Judgemeant (2018}

All academies are non-seleclive and a¥fes pupils a broad curnsulum, The pupile who atend the academies Iy
mainly in the surrounding &reas, To assist academic schievemant and to supgon parents returning 1o woek ar
pat lime/ful bme education, the acadamies cperate some childcare faciliies. This i3 provided whan it is viable to
run. All scademies olfer pugils activiies and experiences beyend the schoal day, allowing many pupils of ail ages
to participate in a varisty of expariences which enhance lsaming asnd social development. All academies
Drganise Varous visis and enrichment exporiences o develop leaming beyond the classeam. These vigite and
enmchmeani activibas are fully inclusive.

Tha Truet arme ta enaure thal auw schools remain &t the hearl of ther commundilies and retan ther
distncbeaness. Our Trust operales with Integrity, a foundation of supgan and prida in the achisvemants of aur
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Objectives and activities (cantinuad)
schools. We Frmily believe that we are stronger together.
Trust vision: Shining Togather, Stranger Tegether, Children a: the haart of everything we do.

Our vision for excalent education ia that we wark In partnership to raise each other up 1o the highest aspirational
standards. We keap children gt the haar of what wa do and provide a culiure whare tall can grow and laarn
ingether. Leader, lsacher and staff development is what underging great cutcomes, We bellews in evary chilg
achisving the bast they can, 7 a holistz aducaiion threugh an individeslised approach,

VWa are standardised in the high expectations of achisvement for all our children. but we aMd aulonamaous in our
approach of how we achisve thess.'

Wy are opan 1o lzarning and sharing that engures an opef-mingdad approach and acheves the best for gur
pupils

Our visicn rests on our Trust valses
Our Trust values

1. Veice of the child — This value has gread importance for us — we want our children's voices to be heard in
ail aspects of the work wa d8 i aur schoaols

4 Community ~ \We place schools at the Bear of their communities, including respechng the individuality af
the school eemmunities and understanding that the schoal communiies bring & weakh of local
uniderstanding and knowledgs,

3. Bupport - \We support all pupils and staff to graw, devielop and ‘be the best they can be', We alse suppan
ofhers in tha system including our itial teacher fraining ang pur DFE Teaching Schaal Hub

4. Integrity — This is cenlral io our actions & decisians. Ve acl with integnity in all decisions that we make

3. Pride - We are exiremely proud of cur pupds, stafl and communities

Qur Culture:

Collaboration and parinershg underpins our Approach, Ve believe in the power of relalisnships, We beleve in
approachability, hurnility, equality, We believe in every child a3 an individusl, We ste an inzlusva Trusk Wa
v&lue pecple for who they are and suppart them I be the tes! varsion of themselvas that they can be - pupiks,
siaff, familgs

Northern Lighls Leaming Trust have expariance of school improvement from improwing schogls wish Cfsted
Judgements of Requires Improvernent through 1o Good ans Crastanding

Wi are forlunate that our Trust is alsa a DIE designaled Teaching Schooi Hub. along with a designated Science
Hub and a number of Matianal and Specialis! Leaders af Education. We also have iraned Ofsted and SIAMES
insgectors in our sial 1eam,

W arg avidence-based and razearch-riformed and we make the bes! decisiors for our schools based an this.
Ve judge our schools' effactiveress an our school currculum infentions. mpact and halistic education provided,
including the parsenal development of owr pupds

Wil balieve that the keys 1o making a ofference arg:

Staff development at all lewvals, ncluding leadership, leaching and suppart sl
Clear pathways for stafl development

Understanding of context and our Trust definiten of contexi

Queality of relationships

Supportive approach

Ascountadity and challenge - including self-secauntabilty

Clarity in roles and responsibilites
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Objectives and activitles [continued)

= High ambitena

»  Foousing on key controfable priontias
« Engagament with pupils, parentsicarers, Governors and widar agancies
o [Innowvative approach, indleding ressanch and devalopment

Objectives, strategies and activities

In geting our objacives and planning our actvilies the Dereciors have given carafl considaration o the Charity
Commission®s general guidance and public benefi

Trust Development Plan Oojectives for 2021.22

Iripact on pudil oultarmss ihreads dirsctly through eeary part of our Trust Development Plan

Arga af
development

Outcome to be achieved

ision and Values

Embed aur Trust values and further develop the culture of the Trust as one
Drganisation

Ensure all schools Jui-nlng the Trus! align with Triest vislon & values

Clearly establish the vision for our Trust & ensure shared with all stakeholders

Cantral Services

Emsure clarity in roles

Appoint HA Admin Role

Devalop Apprantice Role to next Level

Develop the Central Team structure to devalop as a Trust, inchuding adapting
5 WE ErdW

Quality of Education,
Curriculum & Pupll
Dutcomes

Develop standardised language (B where relevant systems) on Gssessment &
stafl appraizal

Clear manitoring system for CEQ ta be aware of school quality of education

Clear curriculum Intent, implementation & impact for all schools in the Trust

Clear strands of progression fior all subjects in all schoals

Fidelity to the Reading Framework in all schoals

Clear assessment cycle monitored by Governance

Clear wider curriculum offer for all schoods across the Trust

Lirar supervision system in place for safeguarding

Communlty

Ensure all of our schools re-engage with activities to bring our communities
back inta school & place the schoals at the heart of the community

Finanoe

Purchase additional finance capacity to carry out admin work for manth end

Areas from audit bo be implemented

Ensure all buildings are fit for purpose
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HORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
iA Company Limited by Guarantea)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Objectives and activities (continued)

Compliance Ensure the scheme of delegation continues to provide clarity as
the Trust grows and adapts

Governance Recruit to fill vacancies

Clear, accurate reparting to the Board that is flexible to the
growing Trust and incorporates school performance, compliance,
Trust & school self-evaluation

Wider Development of Teaching School Hub & alignment with Trust
development of | development
Trust

Grow as an organisation, including ITT, Teaching School Hub, Trust
CPD & services offered to the wider sector

Growth of Trust | Trust to grow in a sustainabie way to develap further
opportunities for our staff and pupiis

Develop a concise, accurate due diligence process with relevant
expertise

Materials to share with schools to be developed that fit with our
culture and values

Directors monitored progress on these priariies through Trust Board meetings, FARM (Fmance. Audit and Riak

Maragemant} mestings, 551G (Strategic Sehool imaravemeant Meelings), additional maatings with key membars
of the Central Team, including the CEQ and tha Chairs Mest ngs where Chavs of Governors meai with Chalr af
Board and CEQ. CEQ reporis dalailad progress on develapment prionilies,

We hiva a detaied growth strategy that details our measured planned growth and includes detail an eur oHa: of
support as a sponsor trust as well 23 an Assacats partnarahip modal for good or better schools interested in
working tagether with us 1o judge whelher the fit is nght and if they would ba interested in joimng sur Trust

Our Associale Bchaal model has proved o be an efective model, with 1 primary scheol. St Helen's Primary
School jeining the Trusd after being #~ Associate Member of the Trust

This ysar we have recaived one TCaF (Trust Capacity Fundng) of £84 850,35 This has besn spent an
daveloping our Trusi o strengthen it o grow, as & resull of the 2 prirary schools joining this year. We have bean
successiul in a8 further TCaF bid which will be spant to further develap the growth of eur Trust in 2022-2023

Public beneafit

The Directers confirm they have complhied with their ouiy to have due regard ba the guidance an publc Benefi! as
published by 1h# Chanty Commission in exercising their pawers or duties. The standard ef aducation afered o
all pupils is cutstanding and is referenced in the foliewing section, All charitable activities are undedaken ba
develop the education of all pupils in #s care and padner organisations in the cammunity,
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HORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Blrategic report
Achievements and performancs
Kay performance Indicators

Safeguarding All safeguarding errangements in all scademias was afaciive for 2021-2022. The Trus) =
supparted by Safaguarding First

Contribution to the wider system: The Trus! continues o cantrisute to the wider syslam, The Teaching Schoal
Hub is now well establishad and warkng with a largs numbar of sohools across the region — Early Years

settings. Primary, Secondary and Special schools, The Trust provides [nitial Teacher Training thraugh a
partnership with Durham SCITT, As the Teaching School Hub we daliver the Early Cereer Framewark, act as an
Appropriate Body for ECTS and pravide the full range of NPOs (partnared with Ambstion and Church of
England/Cathalic Providars) 8s wall as providing sugpart for the regicn and acting as a signpost 1o suppon
teacher professional develaprment from ITT to Executive Lesdership & in al phasas from Early Yaars to pesl 18
including special and albernativa provigisn

The CEQ continues to Char the DFE National Ppmary Headieacher Referance Group and sit on the Recruitment
& Ratenien Adussry Groug. She has also been deplyyad as an NLE i the region again this waar and sits on the
Cisted CEO adwsory group. She s a practising Ofsled ingpacior slong with & rangs of regional padnership roles
which canlribute 1o the wider sysiam,

Our Trust has been funded through Trust and Schoal improvement Funding io suppart a primany $chaal, which
Wik 3 successiul deployment Tha taarm within our Trust includes irainea SIAME inspastor, MLE. SLEs. SEND
ravsewers, Pugil Premium Reviewsrs. Our Trust have providad schosd bo schiool Support ko a large number af
gchools across the ragion (his year,

Academic: 2021 to 2022 Statutory Data

Key
R Reaading
W Whiting
M Mathematics
Expac+ Working at Expected or higher
WaD wWiorking af Greater Dapth
SPAG Speliing Grammar and Punctuation
RWAWM Reading, Writing, Malths Combinad score
Progress Value Added Progress from KS1 fo K52

Noles an gate; Our small schools have small numbers in cohonts that can afect tha statishical signifcarce. This
18 recognised wahin the Trust

Oua (o the small numbar of Pupil Premam chidren in same schaals 8chass the Trust Pupil Premium dats, along
with other vulnerable groups, is analysed internally to avaid identification
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
Etrategic report continued)

Good Level of Development

Good Level of % Phonics Check
Development

Benadict Biscop B2% 100%
Hart E7% BA%
Hollay Park B3% B3%
5t Helen's B2% 88%
5t Peter's Elwick B 93%
Trust Average T7% Bi%
Mational Released Nov 2022 TH%

Koy Stagﬂ 1

Expec | WGD | Expec | WGD | Expec | WGD Expec+ WGD %
+ R + W + M Combined | Combined
R W M RWM RWE

Benedict 20% 359% BT 38% B7% 265% B4% 19%
Biscop
Hart Ta% 208 B 26% Ta% 135% G6% To%
Haollay T9% 29% 9% 15% DA% 250G 5% T
Park
5t 555 31% B2%% 15% B2 275% BRI 15%
Helen's
5t Paters T1% 35% 71%8 14%% B9 355% T1%% 14%
Elwick

Trust 76% | 31% | 73% | 22% | BO% | 28% T1% 12%
Avnragu
Mational BT 1 8% 58% 8% G8% 15% B4 % 11% (2018

(provisional) | Mational)

T4 Multiplication Check

Mo stardardised pass mark dale available tharefore % pass based on scores between 22 and 25 based on
15,863 pupils and 30% scored full marks, Mean natonal score 5 20025 according 1o-5ig Fig Data

Matonal gwaraga nol published but Haley Park a concarm
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
1A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Stratogic repert (continued)
¥ Passed Chack
Benedict Biscop 97%
Hart B7%
Holley Park 568%
St Helen's T2%
St Peter's Elwick Bau
Trust Average 75%
Koy Stags 2
Expecs WGD Scaled Progress | Expect WaED Prograss
R R Ecore W W
R
Bonedict Biscop BT B % 109 [ 74 B4t 80% a5
Hart 8&% 28% 107 BI% 14%
Hollay Park To% 04k 104 Ba% 18%
£% Helen's B1% 3% 108 0.3 7% 12% 0.4
£t Poter's Elwick 100°% 40% 108 1.0 g% TIW 2.2
Trust Averaga il L A6k 108 a5 25%
Matiznal T4% 28% 108 BO%, E
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[A Company Limited by Guarantaa)

DIRECTORS' REPORT [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Strategic report (zontinued)
Expect | WGD | Scaled | Progress Expe | WGD | Scaled | Expec | WGD
M M Scare e+ SPAG | Scare % &
M SPAG SPAG Comb Comb
RwWM RABE
Benad| =k 445 107 =8 S4% 55% 110 91% 24%:
Biscop
Hart 3% 21% 107 0% 20% 106 BER 7Y
Holley To% | 5% | fo2 B2% 105 T0% | Ta%
FPark
StHelen's | B4 18% 104 4.3 Bd% | 21% 103 7% T
St Peter's 100% 47% 108 24 100% | 40 110 83% 145
Elwlck
Trust B0% 25% 107 o1 % 107 CEEA 13%
Avarage
MNational 1% 22% i LT 105 e Tob

K52 iz based on invahdaled datasets srd could be subjecl ta shight changas.

vakdaled Progrees Scores Are Released in Decamber 2022,

SIAMS 5t Pelar's Ewick recened a SAMS mapecton
grade, judged ‘Excelisnt in The impa

this year and was judged a5 Excellent far itg guerall
<t of Collactive Worship and ‘Excatlent” in the ENectiveness of refigious

edutalian

Attendanca:
SCHOOL ATTENDANCE -~ 5.9,21 - 15,7.22
Hart Primary 93.54%
5t. Peter's Elwick CE 5%
Benedict Biscop 95.12%
5t. Helen's 93.36%
Holley Park 94.5%
WHOLE TRUST 94.3%
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MORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Strateglc report (continued)

Financial
ey Benedict Hart Primary |5t  Pelers [ 5iHelen's Hollzy Pask | TOTAL
Perforrance | Biscop CF CofE {from 1 May | Academy
2022)) (from 1 July
. __ lsom

GAG Funding | 823, 780 S10.085 450602 386 837 176,554 2.458 351
Total revenue | 1.508.860 £54 053 £48.005 965,823 554,245 4,311,187
Total Stafing | 1,087 177 480 341 447 327 433,127 18% 002 g.Elﬂ-.Eﬂ
Ressrvas s | 242 3566 122 230 107 653 432670 334 395 1,234 306
al 317822

Total cosls as | B8% BB = =% 39%% 54%

a % of total

funding

Rasarwes as | 25% 4% 2a% 10 187% Baty

% of GAG

Going concern

ARar making apprapnate endgquities, the Board of Trustees has a raasonable expeciatian that the Trust has
adequate resaurces o continue in aperational ewsience for the foresonable fuburs. For this reasan they contimee

b edopt the going concern basis in preparing (he financial statements. Further detalls regarding the edoption of
the going concam basis can be found in the accounting palicies

Financial revigw

The mafority of the Trust's income |s obtained from he Depariment of Educatian {DFE] wia the Educatian and
Skilkis Funding Ageacy (ESFA] in the form of recurrant grants, the usa of which & restrcled 1o paricular
purpases. Tha grants receivad from the DIE/ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2022 and the associaled
experdiume ame shawn as resincted funds in the Slatement of Financial Actviles

The Trust alsa recesved granis for fizes aasels from the DIEESFA, In accordance wilth the Charities Statement

of Recommanded practice, ‘Accsunting and Repeding by Charities’ (SORF 2018), such grants are shown under
the Statement of Financial Activities as restncted income in the fixed asest fund. The rastrictad fivad ascal fund

balance is reducsd by annual depracistion charges over the expactad usalul life of 1he esats cencerned

In addition, the Trust had othes incam= grants from the ESFA funding from Local Authoribes including Eardy

Yeaars Funding and High needs lop up funding for children with Special Educalional Needs. The Trust have
additional income from provedeg wraparound care in the form of breakfast, after sehoal and paid nureacy
educatign

During tha year ended 31 August 2022 the trust have continued to fesal tha furthaer impact of SOVID-18 with

ncreased siaff absence which resulted n increassd supply stal cozls pa.ﬂ_lalll,r covered by sfalt absence
LaE AR fgle

The financial pasition of ine trust is subjact to risks which mey have an adverse effect an the financial
parformanca of ha rust including Increasad premises casts, the energy crisis, the increased mflabon cosis and
badh fhe teaching and Sepport $8aff pay awards. Thess risks are managed by the Finance, Audit and Risk

Managament commities through regular budget monitoring and can be met by the positive lavals of reserve the
1rugt has

During the year ended 31 August 2022 fotal expenddune of £4 480 000 was in excass of recurrant grant funding
from DFE/ESFA fogather with other incoming resources, The excess of expendidura over income for the year
[2xcluding penssh reserse movamants and restrictad fixed asset inds) waa £512 000
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Buarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

All of tha expenditure shewn in the Statemant of Financial Activities is in furthergnge of the Trust's objectives,

Al 31 August 2022 net back value of fued assels was £5 588.000 and mavEments in langible fxed sssets are
shown i nota 13 to the Financial Stataments. The assels ware used exclusively Tor providing education and the
associated suppent sarvices to the students of the academy trust,

The provisions of Fingnaial Reporting Standard (FRS} 102 have baan applied in full in respect of LOPES pansion
scheme, resulbng in a deficit of £87,000 recognised on the Balance Sheat

The Trust heid fund balances as at 31 August 2021 of £6.783,000 comprising £33,000 of rasincted ganeral
lunds, £5,613,000 of restricted fixed saget unds, & pension defict of £67 000 and £1.214 000 of unrestrictsd
funs

FReserves policy

The Directors are responsie for catermining the level of financal reserves 1o be carried forwsrd at the end af
any financial period. The Dieciors have delegated tha mafitonng of pobenbial period end raserves o the
Finance, Audit and Risk Managemen! Committes as part of (hair terms of reference

The Directors will ensure that the levels of resarves that can £€ camed forward af the end of the financial periad
wall be in [me with tha guidance raceived fram tha ESFA on ha treatmenl of General Annual Grant |GAG)
intarme and olhér granis.

The Diractars wil always iy o malkch income with expendiura in the cerrsnt panad &nd will enly carry forward
reserves that | cangiders are necessary for fulure pariads’ expanditure, Tha Direciors will cansider the Scheal
Developmant Plans far capital developments requirad. The Directars may accumuisle resarve funds raised from
privade saurces for the banelit of the schaoals in fuiure years, and fus s discussad annually,

The Trust is aiming 1o maintain a reserve of approximately £400 000 avera S-year period. This is Bpproximsbaly
3 monih of stalfng salary costs. The Trust has a policy of raplacing and improving the buildings for the benef: of
the pupils currently within the academies and consider thig & be 3 reasanable amount. When the Trust expands
his figure will graw in progarian.

There are no funds matarally in defies,

Funds cannat be realised by disposing of tangibie fixed asses

The amount of resarves shown Is above the S-year targst of £400.000, This has been realised frough peudant
financial planning and is currently £1,338 000

Tha reservas policy ks reviewed annually,
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantas)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (COMTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Inwestment palicy

The Trust has made no investments throughout the 2021-22 financial year, The Trust heve continued 1o
invirstigate potential investments. Intarest rates will be reviewsd prior to any rwvestmant. Any invesiments eutsida
of the dapesit account would ba on a law-risk basis taking ethical considerations inte account and wauld need
priar Trust approwval

Our gim is o spend the publicly funded monies with which we are entrusted far the drect educational Banedit of
students as soon a5 s prudent The Trust does not consides tha Mvestiment of surplus funds as a primary
activity, rather A &= ihe result of best praciice as and whean circumstances allaw

The Trust will prepare such budgets and cash fiow farecasts as are racpiired by legislation and best practice, o
ensura tha visbity and sustainability of tne actnaties of the Trust From time to tme, cperational and sirategic
@ecisions relatsd Lo the education of pupils will resull in substantial cash balances at the bank over B sustained
period These periods are enlified by the Chiel Operations and Finance Officer as pant of the rarmal forecasting
activity and. when identified. will result in the Trust making an investment In accordance with any guidanes
pravidad in the Trust's Financial Hardbaook,

Pricr to investing funds. the CED and the Flnance, Audit and Risk Management Committes must be satisfiad
that the cash flow predietions provided are securate and that the amount and time pariod of the invesimant wil
Aot Earmpromiss the wiabdity and sustainability of the actvites of the schools

Pringipal risks and uncertaintles

The Trus! maintains a risk ragistar which is reviewed ragularly by tha Finance, Audil and Risk Managerman
Commiliee o ensure satisfaclory amangements are in place to manage he risk.

In February 2015, ine Trust adoptad the Rizk Pratection Arangements provided by the ESFA. This has
eanhinwed annually

Thera & an annual Imarnal review of all fsk management issuss lad by wanous staff &g, Site Manager, Chis!
Dperations and Finance Oficer and teaching stall. Hewever, thare is afio ongoing mviews in respansa 1o
eifuations or new legislatian ar information,

Durnng 2021-22. an intermal Health and Sately sudit indicatad minimum riske 204 bes| practice. The Trust
compliance system is ulibsad effactivaly 1o engure compliance aeres the acadamiss. This spsiom wil be further
develapad ovar the following perisd ba streamiine sk pesessmeants,

The Trust caasiders all risks and the Darectors have implamentad a number of syslems to assess risks that iy
impact e Trusl, especially in operational areas a.9. in relation 1o leaching, management of IT sacurity,
safeguarding, health and safety, educational school vig2s, and in ralation to tha contral of finance, They use

5ysleams, including operational procedures and intemal financial controls. The Diractars ara sabsfed that
sysiams are in placa o miligals axposura o major righs

A risk manageman! review by the RPA showed na aseas of major concem, The Trustand the academies have
implemented ihe final recommended improvaments over the 2021-22 financial vear

The Trust understands that the Comcnavirus pandernic will eantinue to bring & number of raks and the Directors
have ensured that the risks are monitered end addressad through sk management of the Trust ncluding the

risk ragistar and the internal and extarnal reviews and audits. The principal risks idantified. and maragad. in
Maortham Lights Leaming Trust inchida:

= Polentiad nsk of finanaal irrequlanty and non-cempliance has been mitigated by the growth of the central
team ramaving & single point of failure of the Chief Operations and Financa officer role.

» Polental fnancial fisk dus to Increased staffing costs. &.g. cover far staff who 1231 positive for COVID-12 and
fallow guidance which advises them to stay at home for 5 days . Mitigatad thiough careful managamant af
staffing. staff sbsence meurance, rebust contingancy plans and use of remals aducaton and contined [T
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

infrastruchure Investmeant
= Potential risk of raliance on LA and diocess approved coniraciors mitigated within 2021-22 year by
implementation of a shared trust approved contractors list

Fundraksing
Tha Direciors operate effective contral over the Trusl's furdraising by

* acing in (e best ivierests af the Trust,
* managing individual academy resaurces respansinly which includas profecting and eateguarding its assets
v acling with reasonable care and sk,

The Trust manages all of is own fundralzing. This is used

* foprovide additional resources for the pupils, which might nat ethervise be available.
* o suppon charitable causes linkad lo the school 2.9, Cancer ralatad charities. Children n MNeed. etz

The means used to hendraiss ars kgt within schogl populations and inchude ra sing funds through pupds taking
pan in school-led epansared evants which includes families and friends contributing 1o events such as cake
sales, Christmas fayres and nan-unifaem days. Where possible, the Trust use this a3 an epportunily te develop
social aweraness and & responsilty for ‘giving”. All pupits take part in thesa activities, bul we are awars that
some are vulneratle and therefora thare I8 no ebligation 1o conlrioute Tfinansiaky,

The management of fundraising is respansible, with all menies banked and acaounbes for, Where possible a
receips from the Charity is always requested. The complainis and Whistlablewing policies would ensure ali
complaints and concerns are dealt with appeapriately,

Plans for future pariads

The Trust has 8 comprehensive growth sirategy and is commined ta growth. Ve drs working In pannership with
the Regonal Trustes and Diccese % grow and develop cur Trust Ve ars = Trusi igentfied by the Diocese o
grow. We are in converastion with schools, mterested In jnining Northern Lights.

Wi ave currently explonng a mesgar wilh Dayspring Trust, & Church of England Mull Acaderny Trust of 2 Chureh
of England secondary achoals. We have applied far TCAF funding o stfengthen our Trost fo develop as cross-
phase.

We are sourcing addeional office space for our growing central team, after quotes for bullding work proved rot
best value far manay

Ta review our Growih Strategy to ensure & matches cur current posiion. including in Fght of the petantial
MErger,

Funds hald as custedian on behalf of others

The Trust and it Directors do nad act asthe Custodian Trustees of any olher charity organisation
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[A Cempany Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTIMUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 AUGUST 2022
Disclaaure of infarmabion to auditors

Inzafar as the Direciors are aware:

. there is no felevant audt informaton of which the charitable company's auditars are unawasne and
. that Directors have tsken all sleps that they ought to have taken to make themseves aware of &ny relevart
sudit infarmaton and 1o estabksh that the auditors are awace of ihal Aformation

Tha Dwectors Report was approved by ordar of (he Board of Directors, as [he company directars, an 24 January
2023 and signad on s behall by

/L/

Mark Steuph
Cradr of Trushess
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NORTHERH LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Directors. we acknowladge we have overall responaibility for ansunng that Northern Lights Learming Trust has
&n eMactive and appropriate system of conlrgl. financial and othenwise. However such a system is designed o
manage rather han eliminale the risk of fallure to achigve business objectives. and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatemant or [oss,

As Dhreciors, we have reviewed and taken account of e guidance in DIE's Gavernance Handbask and
competency framework for governance

The Eoard of Directos has delegated the day-to-day responsbdity 1o the GEQ as Accounpng Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propristy and good financial managarment and
' accordance with (e requirements and responsibilities assigned o it in the funding agreemant betwasn
Northern Lights Learning Trust and the Secrelary of Etate for Educalion. They are alsa responsicle for reporting
o the Board of Dwectors any material weakresses or breakdowns i internal control,

Governance

The informalcon on governance included hare supplements thal described in the Diteciors’ Raport and in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsitiities. The Board of Directors has farmally met T times duning the year ang
held their Annual General Maeting

Attendance durng the year at meetings of the Board of Direciors was as follows

Directar Meetings altended Dot of B posaizip

8 Stouph, Chaimersan

P Clark, resigned 10 November 2023

M Emmerson, resigned 15 Novembar 2021
K Hammong

J Heaton, CEQ and Accounting Offacas

C Hodgson. appointed 11 January 2022

2 Inkster

S Lymar

P Cilssn

ST U, T I )
o ol B g e k=

Narthern Lights Learning Trust manages conflets of intarast by requesting declarations of intarest from all
Derectors and SLT personnel at the beginning of the academic yeer. Declamations of inlerest are also a standing
agends item af each govermance meeting and all members ace fully aware of the requirament ta be transparent
and open abaut any possible conflicts. Mertharn Lights Leaming Trust doas not have any ownership or contral of
subsidigries. joint ventures or associates

Governance roviews:

A S-year strategic plan is in place for Morhermn Lights Learming Trust This is reviewsd annually with a clear
continued focus on growing the Trust, sirenglhening govermance and ensuring there are appropnate systems
and procedures 1o sustain measuted growth

An additienal commibee for the govemance of the Teachsng Scnoal Hub and a working group focusing on Due
Dilipence, has been formed this year and added & the Board structure a8 & result of the Trust Growth Plans

The Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee is a Sub~commiites of the main Board of Directors. |is
purpose is to ensure effaclive use of resources whilst sseking ways to ansure ouistanding end sustainable
provision and managing any proposed risks

Altandance during the year at meetings wes as follows

Diractor Mestings attendad Cutof a possible
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT |CONTINUED)

Goavarmance [continued)

P Olsen, Chair & -
i Stouph 5 5
S Lymer 3 -]

4 ]

J Heatan {chserver anly)

Raoview of value for monay

As Accounting Officer, the CEQ has responsibdity for ensunng that tha Trest delivers gacd valus in the usa o
punlic resources, The Accounling Officer understands that value for money refers 1o the edueatonal and wichpt
socsetal cutcomes achigved in ratumn fof the taxpayer resources recelved

The Accountng Officer considars how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during

£ach academic year, and reparts 1o the Board of Dreclors whase value for money can be impraved, including the
wse of banchmarking data whera appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Trus: has deiverad mproved value

far maney during the year by

*  Conlinung the conlract far sports coaching under SLA saving o lunchiima supervisory cosis, whilst
devaloping healthy physical activity, reducing incidents of poor behavisur

» Duets Cowid-19, procedures were introduced Lo allow stalf 1o work fram home. this hai confinued when
possible fofiowing the wider opening of schools 1o maximise warking houwrs and minimise staff bsence

= Continual review of SLA's 1o negotiate savings and o sireamine confracts across the Trost,

* Further irvastmant in IT 1o continue the commstmant for 518 to be abie to dellver outsts nding réamote
education (o &l pupils,

* Appantmant of apprentizes 1o build capacily and invest in stalf devslopment

o Collabotative working acroas the Trust to reduce duplication.

+  Covaring temparary mataraity vacancias by segragaling and redisiribubing responsibilites soross sxising
elaff giving savinge across staffing,

s Covering temposary slaff sbeences intarnally by rélacating slaff 1o achieve savings acioss the trugl

= Reviewing central team strusture and aulsourcing operational fnance rather than recruling a full-tma
POBAION [0 BnSUME Savings on 2&lary and building v conlingency for absences.

The purpose of the system of internal cantrol

The syslem of internal control is desigred ta manage risk 10 a reasonable lavel rather than to eliminate all rizk of
fatlure to schieve policies. aims and abjactives. |t can, therelore. only provide reascnzhla and not abssiute
assurance of gfeclivenase. The systam of internal conkrol ia based an- an on-going process designad 1o kKentify
and prigrfise the risks 'o fhe achiavement of Trusl poticies &ime and chjectives. 10 evaluabe the likefhaod of
thiose risks being realisad and the impact should hay be reslised, and fo manage them efficiently, effactively and
economically. The systam of intemal contral has been in place in Northern Lights Leaming Trust sinca. 1
Seplermbar 202110 31 August 2022 and up 1o the date of agaroval of the annual ropost-and financial statarmends

Capasity 1o handle risk

The Boadd of Direciors has reviewad the key risks to which e Trust is expased together with the operating,
financial and compliance controds that have baen mplemantzd to mifigate those risks, The Board of Direciors is
of the view that there is & formal en-going process for identifying, #valuating and managing the Trusl's significant
reskis el has been in place for the period 1 Seplember 2021 1o 31 August 2022 and up 1o the dabe of approval of
the: annual report and financial siatemants. This procass is reguilarly reviswed by the Board of Directars

The rigk and control framewaork

The Trust's system of intamal financlal contral is basad on a framework of ragular managemeni information and

adminisiratr/e procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
paricular, |f inclindas:
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARBNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)

The risk and control frameawark (sontinuad)

* comprenensive budgeting and monitenng systems wih an annual budget and periedic financial reparts
which ara reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors

. reguiar reviews by the Finance. Awdt and Risk Management Commitiee of rapors which indicale financial

performance against the forecasts end of major purchase plans capital workas and expanditure

programmes

satling largels ts measure financial and other padformancs

clearty defined purchasing |asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and managemant of risks

The Board of Ditectors has decided to buy-n an internal audit service fram Azats

The imemal auddior's role includas g adwice on financial maltsss and performing a ranga of checks on the
academy trust's financlal and other systems. 1 particutar, the checks carrind out in 2 current pariod nchided

fesking rieks from previous regors

testing of accounis and reconcilintions systems
testing of risk management proceases

testing of purchasing systems

testing of payroll syslams

18eting of corparate gevernance

tegling of incoeme recording sysiems

testing of control of thi thust bank accounis

& & = w ® @

On a lermly basis, the auditor reports 1o the Board of Directors. thraugh the Finance, Audt and Risk
Management Commitlee on the operation of the systems of cantral and an (R dischange of the Board of
Directors’ financial responsisities and annually prapares an annual summary report 1o the Committes futiining
the areas reviewed, key findings. recommendations and conciusions 1o help the Commites sansider sclions and
ASEEGS YEAT 00 Year progress. Work was perflomed as per the agread schadule of work,

Fellewing ithe internal reviews in 2021-22. policies have been reviewed, amended and communicated with staff
via he eleciromsc compliance systam. Now staff inductions have been streamiined centraly and a training

Review of e ectivensas

Ag Accounting Oficer, the CEQ hag respansiilty Ior rsvigwing the efectivensss of tha systam af intarnal
contral. Quring the year in question ha review has basn inlormed by

. tha work of the intarnal auditor;

. the weark of the exlemal auddors:

. the financial management and govemnance self-assessment EroCess,

i the wirk of the executive managers within the Trust whe have responsibilay for the cevelopment and
mamtenance of the Miermal contal framawork

Tha Acceunting Officer has been advised of the implications of the resull of their review of tha syslam of inisrmal
zantl by the Finance. Audit and Risk Management commities and g plan ta address wedknesses and ensura
continuous improvement of the sysiem is in place,
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MORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT [CONTINUED)

Snproved by order of the membars of the Baard of Directors on 24 Januasy 2023 and signed on their behal! by:

M Stouph « Heaton
Chair of Trusiess Ascounting Officer
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantaa)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As-Accounting Officer of Noriham Lights Learning Trust | ha've censidered my reaponsielgy to notify the Trust
Board of Directors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irmegulasity. impropristy and
ron-compliance wilh temms and conditions ef il funding received by the Trusl under the funding agreement in
place batwaen the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had dus
regard to the requirments of the Academy Trust Hardbosk 2021,

I confirrn tha: | and the Trust Board of Direclors are able o identty ary material irregular or mproper use of all
furds by the Trus!, ar matedal non-compiance with the terms and condiians of funding under the Academy's
linding agreement and the Acadarmy Trusi Handbook 2021,

| ecafirm that no instances of material irregulanty, impropriaty or funding non-campliancs hava bean discovered
to dete. If &ny instances are identifed afler the date of this statemant, thess will be aabfisd 1o the Board of
Directors and ESFA

J ] { LA

J Haatan
Accaunting Cfficer
Cale 24 January 2023

Page 23



NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes|

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPOMSISILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 20232

The Dwectors (whao are also the direciors of the charitable company for the purposes of company aw) are
fesponsible for preparing the Directore’ Repoen and the financisl stataments in accerdance with the Academies
Accounts Diracton pubfished by the Education and Skiks Funding Agency, United Kingdom Azcounting
Standards (United Kingdom Gensrally Accaplad Accounting Practice) and applcable law and regulations,

Comgany law reguires (he Dicectors b9 prepare financial siatermsnts for each financial | Under pampany law, tha
Oirectars must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied inat they gve a true and fair view of
tha statz of aMtairs of the chaditable company and of its Incoming resources and application of rescurces
including 45 incoma and expenditure, for thar period. In preparing these financial statements, the Direclars are
required bo

. select sullabi sccounting policies and then apgly them conaiglently;

. obsarva the melhods and prirciples of 1he Chariias SORP 2018 and the Acedemies Accounts Owactan
021 ta 2022

. make judgments and accouniing estimates that are reasonable &nd prudeny

] state whather applicable UK Accounfing Standarcs have been fellowad subjzct 19 any malerial deoariures
disciosed and explained in the financial statemeants

- prepare the financial statements an the going concern bass unlkess il is inappropriate o presumes thal the
chariteble camgany will sartinua in busness.

The Dwectors are responsible for keepng adaquate accounting recerds thar ars sulficient to shew and sxplain
the charitable company's iransactions and discloss with reasonable acturacy al By fime the fmancial positan of
the chariableé company and enable them lo ensure thal the finencial staternants comply with the Companies A
2005, They are alse responsivle for safequarding the assets of the charitabla company and hence fer taking
reasanenls steps for tha prevention and detaction of fraud and other irragulariios,

Thé Dvrechors are respansols far ansunng mat in A canduct and sparation ihe chartabls campany applias
finarcial and other controls, which confarm with the requiremants beth of propriaty snd of good financal
manegement, Thay afe also responsibie for en Suring grants recelvad from ESFADIE have been appliad for ha
putposes intended

The Directors are responsilz for the memienanca and inlegnty ol ke corporate and financial information
ncluded on the chardable company's website. Legisiation in the Unitad Kingdom governing the presaration and
digsemination of financial statemenls may differ fram legistation in other jurisdictions,

Approved by ordar of the membars of the Board of Direciors on 24 lanuary 2023 and signed an @5 banall by

eyt

M Stouph
Chair of Trustess
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantaa)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST

Opinion

Wa have suditsd tha financial staterments of Norhern Lights Learning Trust (the ‘academy’) far the year ended
31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Finsncial Activities, the Balancs Sheet. the Statemant of Cesh
Flows and the related notes. including a summary of sgnficant accounting policies. The financial reporing
framewark that has been applisd in ther preparation (s applicable law. Uniad Kingdom Accounting Standards
\Wriled Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Diraction 2021 ta 2022 issued by the Egusation and Skils Funding Agency.

In our opinicn the financial statements

" give & true and fair view of the siate of the Academy's affairs @3 at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming
resturces and application of resources, Including s income and expanditure for the year ihen endad

L] have bean properly prepared in accordance with Unided Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practics. and

- hava been prepared in accordance with 1he requirements of e Compansas Ax{ 2006, the Charlbas S0ORP
2012 and the Academies Accounts Direcbon 2021 to 2022 issusd by the Education ard Skills Funding
Agency

Basis for opinlon

We conductad our audit in accordance wiih International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1585 [UK)) Bnd spplicabls
3w, Our résponsibilities undes those standards are further dascribed in the Auditors’ responaibilibes for the ausdit
of tha fnancial statements section of cur repart. We are independant of the Academy it accordancd with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audil of the financial elatements in the United Kingdom including
ihe Financial Reporing Councifs Efnical Standard and we have fulfilad cur other ethical responsib#iiss in
accordance with these requirements. We baliave that te audit svidence we have obtained Is sufficient and
appraphaie o pravide a basis for our apinton

Canclusions relating to geing concarn

In auditing tha financial statements. we have concluded that the Direcinre’ ues of the gmng concern basiy ol
mecounting in the preparation of the fnancial stalements iz appropriate

Based on the wark we have performad, we have not idessified any matenal uncerdainties relating to events or
conditicns that, individually oe collactvely, may cast signdicant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue a5 a
gaing concern for a pediod of at lzast twelva months fram when the financial staterants ass authorised for issue

Our responsibllibes and the responsinilibes of the Directass with respact 1o going concern arg described 7 the
relavan! seclions of this repart
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[A& Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMEBERS OF
NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other infarmalion comprises the informaton included in the Annual Report ather than the financial
stalements and ool Auditors’ Repon thereon, The Directors are rasponsible for the other Information contained
within the Ansual Raport, Our gpinion on the fimancial stalements doss oot cover the ether inlarmation and
excapt to the axtent olhenwise explicitly stated in our report. we do nol exprass any form of assurance conclusion
thareon. Our rezponsibility is to read the ofher information and, in doing $o, consider whether the ofher
infarmation (s materally inconsistent with the financial stataments of our knowledga obtaned in the course of the
Budil, or otherwise appears o0 ba matenally messtated. If we identify such materal incansistencias or apparent
malerial misstaternents, we ara required to determing whather this gives rise 1o a material misstatemen i the
financial statements themaalves, If, based on tha work we heyve perfommed. we conclude that thess s 3 matarial
rigstatement of thes ather informaticn. we are reguired o regor hat fact,

Wa have natking ko report in this regerd
Cpinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008

In suf opinion. Based on the wiork underaken in the courss of tha audst

. the infcamation given in the Directors’ Report for tha financial vear for which ihe finaseial slatemants ars
prepared 5 consistent with the firgncial statements
. the Direztars’ Report has been pragared in accordance with applicable legal requirsmeants

Matters oi which we are reguired to report by exception

In the light of our knawledga and understanding of tha Acadamy and its environment chtained in the covrse of
theradit, we have mol entifed material missiaterments in he Dreclors’ Repon.

We have noining 19 mpon in respect of the following mathers |n relation to which the Companias Act 2008
requines v b report (o you I, In our esinian

o adequsts accounling recards have nol been hep! or returns adequate for our audd have not bmen
recaned Irom bianches not visted by us; or
tha financial stalements are not in agreemant with 1ha ascounting records and retums; or

0 carain disclosures of Direchars’ samunaration spaciiad by 13w ara not made: or
we nava nol received all the infarmation and explanations wa reguire Far oor audit

Responsibilities of trustess

As explained mare fully in the Directors’ Responsiodities Stalement, the Diréctors (who are alsa tha directors aof
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible far the prepasstion of the financial slabements
and for baing satisfied thal they give a trug and fair view, and for suzh intermal control 83 the Directors detarmine
B necessan 1o erable the preparaton of linancal statemsnts hat are free from makarial migstalemant whaiher
due 1o fraud or emar,

In preparng the financial siatements, the Direclors are responsible for assessing the Acadermy's abifty to
conlinee a5 2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matars relatad 1o gaing concern and using the going
concern bagis of accounting unless the Directore sither intend 1o liquidate the Academy or to caase operabons
&r have no realisic alleamalive but 10 do o
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{& Company Limited by Guarantas}

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of tha financial stateamants

Ohx objecies arg 10 cbtain reasanable atsuranse aboul whathed 1ha Ninanca! stalemants as & whols afe fraa
from material misstatement, whethar due to fraud or error. snd 1o issue an Autilors' Report that includes our
opitian. Reasonable assurance s a high fevel of assurance but is not @ guaraniee that an aude conducted in
accordanca with 15As (UK) will advays deiect a matenal missiatemant whan i eosts. Miestatamanis can angs
from fraud or érror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, thay could reascnably be
expected (o influgnce the economic declsions of usars taken on the basis of these financlel statements

Irregularities, including fravd, are inatances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We dasign pracedures
in ling with ot responsibiiies, outlined above, to detect malenal missiatements in respact of irregularites,
ncluding frawd, Cur audit must be 3ter 1o the risk of manipuiation of the financial stalements and seak 1o
undersiand |he incentives and opportunities for management i achiove this

Wie undertake tha faflowing procedures o idenify and respand to (hese risks of non-comphance

v LUndarstanding the key legal and regulsiory framewarks that are applicabls fo the Trust. We communicated
identfied laws and regulations throughou! the sud® team and remained sled 1o any Indications of
noncompliance throughout the audit. We deletmined the mast signifficant of these fo be the negulelkens set
out by the DIEESFA, Cur audit fecuses on financial matiers as set oul in our regularity opinien, Other key
laws end regulatens inclhided safeguasrding. Health & Safety, GOPR and employrant law

*  Enquiry of rustees and management as to polices and procedures 1o ensure compliance and any known
instances of non-comoliance

«  Revaw of board minutes and correspandance wilh regulators

*  Enquiry of trusiess and managament as io areas of the financial siatemenis suscepdible 1o fraud and how
ihese risks ong managed

»  Challenging management on key estimales assumptions and [udgements made in e preparation of the
financial stalements, These key areas of uncerdainty are disclosed in the accounlng palicies

¢ ldentifying and testing Unusual journal Bnlries. with'a particular focus on manual joumnal entries

Throwgh these procedures, we did not become aware of aclual or suspectad non-compliance,

Ve planned and pedormed our eudit in accordance with Budiling standards but owing b the inhereni limdations
of procedures required i these areas. fhere i an unavoidable nsk 1hal we may nof have delscted a matarial
misstalameant in the accounts, The furlher removed non-camplance with laws and regulations & from ihe events
and lransactons reflscted in the financal etataments, the Bge [kely we would becama awae of & The rigk of nal
detecting & malenial misstatemen! due 1o fraud is higher than the nisk of nal detecting one resulling frarm error. a8
fraud may involve concealment, collusian, fargery, misreprasentations. or ovarride of intesnal controls, Ve are
ni responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannol ba expacied o detect non-compliance with all laws
ond regulabons

A furlher descrption of cur responsibilities foe the audil of the financial stabemants is located on the Foancial

Reportng Councl's website ab www.frc ora ukisediiorsrespongibilities. This descripbien forms part of our
Auditors’ Repar
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
MORTHERHN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED|

Use of our rapart

This report i§ made solely 1o the Asademy's members, @5 8 tody. In accordance with Chaptar 3 of Pan 16 of the
Companles Act 2008, Our audit wors has been undertaken so that we might stae to the Academy's members
fraze matlers w8 afe required 1o stabe Lo them in a0 Auditees’ Report and fo® o other purpose. Ta the fullest
axtent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ofher than the Acadarmy and it
memberns 85 a body, for our auditwork. for this repad. or for the opinigns we have formed

{:\J_‘;_g__mr- L.'Lf

Hevin Bholtan BA BFP FCA (Senlor Statutory Auditar)
for and on behall of

Clive Owan LLP

Chartared Accouniants

Stalufary Audicrs

140 Cariscilfs Road

Ciarlington

County Durham

DL3I TRT

Date: l"u'.'\il\'i_;
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MORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
(A& Company Limitad by Guarantea)

INDCEPENDENT REPOARTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERM
LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accardance with the terms of cur engagement lefier dated 18 September 2020 and funher io fhe requirements
of the Educalion and Skills Funding Agency (EEFA} as inciuded in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 1o
2022, we have carmed oul an engagemant to oblan limited sssurance aboul whathar the axpendiyre disbursed
and income racaived by Northem Lighis Learning Trust during the year | Seplember 2021 fo 31 August 2022
hiave bedn abplied to the puposes identfed by Pariament and the fmancial iransactions conform to the
authorities which gavarm tham,

This report i= made salely to Nodhem Lights Leaming Trust and ESFA In accordance with the tarms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undenazen 50 fal we might slate fo Nodhern Lights Learning Trust and
EGFA thass matiars wa are required to state in 8 repan and for na ather purpaze, To (ha fulest axten) permitied
by law, we do not accept or assume respansibility 1o anyone odber than Morthern Lights Leaming Trust and
ESFA. for our work, for this repart. o for the conclusion we have formes

Respective respongibilities of Northern Lights Learning Trust's accounting officer and the
reparting accountant

The accountny officar is responsible, under the requirements of Norihern Lights Lesrning Trusts funding
agreement with the Secrelary of State for Educaton dated 23 Jasuary 2012 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expendifure disbursed and income recelved is
ppplied far the purposes intended by PasBament and the financial transactions conform o the authorites which
govasn them

Qur respensibiites for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom oy our profession’s ethical
guidance &nd e to ablain limiled assurance and report in accordance with our engagemant lefter and the
requirernenis of the Academmes Accounis Derection 2021 40 2022 We repof 1o you whethar anything has come
I= coi atiention in carmong out cur work which suggests Bxat in all malenal respects, expanditure disbursed and
income recened duning the year 1 September 2029 to 31 Augusl 2022 have not been appled to purposes
intended by Pariament o ihat tha financial ransactons da not confarm to e authorities which gowarn them

Approach

We conducled our engagement in accordence with the Framework and Guide for Extarnal Audiors and
Reponing Accountant of Acadamy Trusts issuad by ESFA. We performed a limiled assurance angagement B8
dafinad in our angagemant |sker

The ohjectve of a limiled assurance engagermen| is 1o pedform such procedures 35 10 obiaein infarmatian ana

expianations in order to provide us wilh sufficient appropriate evdence o axpress @ negatwe conclusion on
regulariby

A limited essurance engagemant is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us 1o oblain assurance thal we would become aware of all significant mattars that
mex B identified in a ressonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, wa do not express a positive opinign

Cur enpagement includes examaation. on a 1es! hasis, of evidence relevant e the reguladty and propeisty of the
Academy’s income and expendiune

The wokl underaken to draw e our conclusion includes

Raview of governing body and commetes minutes

Review of termly Inlernal Assurance reponts,

Complelion of self assessmant questonnaire by Accounting Oificer,

Feview documentation previded 1o Direclors and Accounting Officar satling cut responsibdities
Dhbtain formal letters of represantation delailing the responsividies of Directors;

Review of payroll, purchases and expensas claims on a sample basis;

Confirmation that the lines of dalagation and limits set have been adhered to,

+  Evaluation of infarnal conirol proceduras and rapartag lnes,

# [Raview cash payments for unusual fransactions
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{4 Cempany Limitad by Guarantsa)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO MORTHERN

LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Rauviaw of credit card transactians;

Review of registers of intérests,

Review related pary Iransactons

Review of barrowing agreaments,

Rewvias of land and building ransasoons;

Reviaw of potantial and aciual bad dabts;

Review an ingtance of gits/hoapitalty ta ensure in ing with policy
Rewiaw whistlablowing procedures,;

Feview pay policy and factors datermining executive pay,
Revigy of staff expansey,

Raview other income Io ensure is in hne wilth funding agreemsnt;
Rayigws governance structure and numbar of meatings held; and
Review whather thaa |5 2 risk ragusier in pace.

Conclusion

In $he course of ol work. nedhing has come 19 ouf atlenlion which sugges! in al matenal respeckl the
expanddure disbursed and income received duning the year 1 Septernber 2021 to 31 Auvgust 2022 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Padiament and the financial transactions dao not canfarm 1o the authorities which
povem them

C_L,:_,_,___Q._m.- L F

Aeparting Accauntant
Clive Owen LLP

141 Conisclffe Road
Daringlen

Counby Durham

DL TRT

s 25|\ 3
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Income from:

Donathens and capital
grants

Traastar fram lacal
authority an convarsion

Acquired fram
existing @cademy st

Qtner donations and
capital grants
CHhear frading activities
Charliable activibes:

Areadamy edutalineal
cperalions

Teaching schaal it

Tatal Income

Expanditure on:
Raising funds
Charitatle acirnies

Total expenditure

Mot movemant in
funds bafora other
recegnised
gaine/(loreea)

Other recognised
gainellozses):
Actuarial gaineflosses)
ion dafined banafit
BERgion schamas

Nai maovemant in
funds

Raconciliation of
funds:

Tl funds biought
foraard

Mt moversent in funds

Tolal furids carred
forsard

Hats

24

Hestricted
Urrestnchad Restncied fixed assel Tatal Tatal
fuprds funcs funds Turds lurds
2023 2022 2022 2023 2021
£000 EQOD £O00 EQoG 340
437 {781} 2,163 1 6805 -
4% 168 1,783 1.955 -

2 T 74 23 23
TE - 175 04
141 I T | - asn 2585

BT = 8T a0
BO3 3,051 4 03 7.ET4 2,782
2 i a 2 :
37 4327 114 4478 £.5060
28 g 327 194 4 480 2560
784 (1,275) 3,908 3,304 (168)
. 2.612 - 26812 (58]
TE 1,335 3 906 6,006 (2E63)
il ——
40 (1,30 1,707 TRY 1,050
T4 1.335 3908 B.005 (263)
1214 [3d) 5811 6,783 Tar
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

i Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07209140

BALANCE BHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

2022 2021
Mote f£00a EQ00
Fized assats
Tangibls assats 13 5.588 .68
5584 1,691
Current assats
Deblors 18 1,308 153
Cash at bank and in hand 483 713
1.788 B72
Cradiors. amgunts falling due within one
yaar ir 15Z6) {3189
Mat current assels 1.272 553
Total asaeis less current llabliities £.850 2.244
Met assets excluding pension lahility & BSD 2 244
Defined benaft pension scheme |isbifty 24 {G7] (1,457)
Total net assats 6,83 TAT
e L — ]
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

(A& Company Limitad by Guarantes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07309140

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
A5 AT M AUGUST 2022

20232 L£hZ1
Mk EQQD EQ32
Funds of the Academy Truat
Restrlated funds:
Fized azsat funds 18 5.813 1,707
Raesirictad income funds 18 i3 a7
Resgtricted funds excluding pansion asss 18 5.G45 1784
Peasion resenva 18 (6T) {1.45F)
Total restrictad funds 18 EE7S a37
Unrestricted income funds 18 1,214 450
Total funds 6. 793 a7
| — =] I

The financial stalemenis have bean prepared in accordance with tha provisions apgficable 1o entites subiedl to
ine small companies regme,

The financial stalemants on pages 13 1o 68 were approved by the Directors, and aulhorised for issue on 24
January 2023 and arg signed on their behalf, by

M Stouph
Chair of rushass
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Quaranise)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLUST 2022

i)
Cash flows from operating activities
Met cash [used inliprovided by opérabing achvibes 20
Cash flows fram Invasting activities 21
Change in cash and cash squivalants In the yaar
Cash ard cash eguivalents &t the baginmng of the yvear
iCash and cash #quivalents at the énd of the year £4. 43
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[& Company Limited by Guarantas)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 3022

Apcounting pallzles

1.1

1.2

A summary of the prncipsf accounting pelcies adopted (which have been appled consstenty,
#xzapt where noled), judgments and key sources of estimatien uncerainty, is sat out below

Basls of preparation of finencial statements

Tre financial statements of the Academy, which is 8 public benefit entity under FRS 102, have baen
prapared under the historic ces! convention in accordance with the Financial Reparting Standard
Apphcabie in the UK and Reputlic of treland (FRS 102}, the Accounting and Repading by Chanties:
Statemen| of Recommanded Praction applicabls to charities preparing the accounts in accordance
with the Financlal Reporting Standard applicabls in the UK and Republic of |reland (FRS 102
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)} the Azadamies Azcounts Direction 2021 to 2022 Issued by ESFA, the
Charities fct 2071 and the Companies Acl 2006

Going concarn

Tne Direclors assess whethes the use of going concern s appropriate L& whether there are any
material uncertainties related fo events or condftiona thet may cast significant daubt on the ability of
the Trust fo continue a8 a going concern. The Direciors make this assassment in respect af a period
of 8t leasi one year from the dale of autharisaton for isaue of the financial stataments and have
conchetbed thal fthe Trust has adeguate resources bo confinee in ocperational existence for the
farasesable fulure and there are ro malerial uncerainties about the Trust's ability fo continue &5 a
going concarn, thus they canlinue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financal slatameants.
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MNORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLUST 2022

1, Accounting policies (continued)

13 Income

All Rcoming resources are recagnised when thie Trust has enliflemsn) I the funds, the receipl is
prooable and the amount can te measurad raliably

« Grants
Grants are included in the Stalemen: of Finendal Activilies on & recaivanle basis. The balance of
income receved for specilic purposes bul nol expended during the perod Is shown in 1he relevanl
fungs on ihe Belance Sheel Where income ' received in advance of mesting any peformance-
related conditiong thare i gl unconditonal antBlemant i3 tha income and ils recognition is deferred
a&nd Included in crediors 25 deferred income wnbl ihe performance-ralaiza condiions are mat. Wrare
antilamant occurs befora Inceme is received. the incoma is aconued,

Gieneral Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Stalemant of Finarcial Activites in the vaar fas which
it is raceivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducled from income and recognissd as
g lihihity

Capital granis ae recognised in [ull when there i an sncondifional entdlemeant 1o the grant Unspent
ameunls of capital grents ere reflected in the Balence Shaet in the resiricied fixed assat fund, Capital

grante are recognisad whan thare 5 entifliemant and are 1ol deferred over the Ifa of the sesel on
which thay are aspendsd

¢ Donations

Donalions ane recognisad on a racevabbe Dass (whide theve are o periormanca-ralated conditions)
where the receipt is probasis and the amount can be raliably messurad

+ Dtherincome

Cither income. Acludng the hine of facilifies, = recoghisad in ihe vear it is recaivable and 1o 1he extent
e Trusi has provided the goods or senvices

« Transfer on conversion

Where assels and llailies are recaived by the Tusl on canversion 1o an acadenyy, 1he rangiamed
agssels are measwad at far value and recognesed in the Balance Sheat at tha poinl whan the risks
and rewards of ownership pass o the Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised ag a ransfer
on cenvarsion within Income fram Danations and Capial Grants’ o the nel assels received,

#  Transfer of existing academies Into the Trust

Whare assals and liafalibas are received on the transfer of an exsting academy inte the Tresl, the
transferred A55a1% are measurad at far wahue and racogn imad in the Balance Shes| at the por when
the rigks and rawards of ownership pass to the Trual. An equal amauns of income is resognised for

the transfer of an exizbng scademy inlo the Trusl within 'Income fram Donations and Capital Grants’
fo the net asscls acquired
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HORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A& Company Limited by Guarantas)

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1, Accounting policies (continued)

14

1.5

Expanditurn

Expanditwre s recognised once there s a legal or constructive obligaton fo franster economic benafi
lo & third pardy, it s probatle that & transfer of economic bensfits will be required in sefilement and
iha amaun) of the obigaton can be measured rabably.

Expenditure is classified by activity, The coats of each acivity are made up of ina total of dect costs
and shared costs, including support costs imvolved in underieking each adlivily Direct coste
atribuiable 1o a sngla activity are allacatad diractly 10 thak activity. Shared cosis which oonrtributa 1o
miane than ona ackivity and support costs whick aré rol abiribulable to a single aclivity are apperionad
Detwesn (hose achyibes on a bass consisient with the use of esources, Central staff cosls ars
allocased on the besie of tima spent, and depreciglion charges allacated on the portion of he assel’'s
uss

All reapurcas expendad sre incfusive of irrecovarabls VAT,

Charitabla activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy’s educalional cperations, induding supsart costs and cosis
radating o the povernance of the Academy spporlionad fo charitabde activitiea

Tangibla fized assals

Aazats cosling ESO0 of mare are capitaliszed as tangible fixed assels and are carmed al cost, net of
depraciation and any pravislan for Imoalmmen

Wnese langibie fived assets have been acquired wilh the ad of specfic grants, eithar fram the
governdnant or from the prvate sector, they sre bncluded i the Balsnce Sheel sl cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economis ife. Where there are specifc condiions aftached 1o
the funding requirng the continued use of the asset the related granis are crediled fo @ resincled
fixed aseal fund in the Slatemani of Financial Activities and camned forward in the Balance Sheet
Deprecation on the refevant assels is charged diectly to the restricted fixed assel fund in the
Siatement of Financial Actiwiies. Wheare tangibls fived asseds have been acqulred with uRresincied
funds, dapraciation on such aesets i charged 10 Ihe unrasirictad fund

Depresalion i provided on all tanaiple fixed asseis ciher fhan freshold land and asssis urnder
cangifuction, at rates caliulated to write off the cost of gach aeset on & straight-line basis over its
axpacied wsaful ife. as follows:

Depraciation is provided an the following bases

Leasehold land - 125 years sraight kne
Leasahold buildings - &l wears siraight lina
Leasahold buildags - 40 years straight lina
Enprovements

Fixtures, fittings & sguipment - 5-B yaars straighl line
Compubsr eguipment = d years siraight ling
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A& Company Limited by Guaranter)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policles (continuad)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Liabifities

Liabliies are recognised when therd i 2n ciblgation af the Balance Sheet dats as a result al & pasl
evanl, 1 is probable that & transfar of ecanamic banafit wil be reguired in sattement, and the amount
of the sellement can be estimated rafiably. Liabilies are recognised at tha amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to sattle the dabt or the amourt it has received as advanced payments for the
gocds of services it must provide. Where the effedt of the fime value of maney 13 materal, the
provision is bassd oa the present value of those amounts. discounted 22 the pra-tax discoun] sate thai
reflects the risks specific to the kability. The unwnding of the discount is recognised within inteses
payatle and samilar charges

Cperating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against mcome on & atraight-lne basis over the
penod of the ez

Finanshal Instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial ingtrumants as defined in FRS 102, The financial assels and
financial liabilities of the Acadermy and their measuremant bases ars & follows:

Financial assets - tfade and other debtors ara basic fmancial insruments and are debl mstruments
meagured at amor:sad e682 as datailad in nale 18, Prepaymernis are not fnancial instrumenia

Cash at bank is classifisd 3% 2 baszic finansial ingtumant and s measured at face valus.

Financa! habdties - trade creditors, accruals ano other croditars are firaneial indtruments, mnd ars
measured al amortised cost as detaded in note 17, Taxaton and sacial gacurify are not included in
the finarcial mstruments diusclssgre dafinition.

Taxatlon

The academy trust is considered bo pass the tasts set out In Faragragh 1 Schedule 6 of 1he Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meels the defnition of @ charitsble company for LK comperation fax
purpases, Accordingly, the academy trust is polentaly sxempd from ta=sian in respec] of moome o
capral gains received within categaries coverad by chapter 3 part 1 of tha Corporation Tax Act 2016
or Secton 235 of the Taxahon of Chargesble Gairg Aet 1992, 10 the extert that such income ar Gins
are applied exclusively to charitable purpozes
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
& Company Limited by Guarantoa)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policles [continuad)

1.10 Pensions benefliz

Retiremant benefiis to employass of the academy frust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Schema (TPS) and the Local Govearnment Pension Scheame ['LGPS'). These are defined banefit
schames and the assels d0e held separately rom those of the academy trust

Tra TPE & an unfunded scheme and contributons are calculated so &5 to speead the cost of
pEnsiang over amployeas warking livas wilth (ke Academy in such a way that tha pansion cost s 8
substantially bevel percentage of curreni and luture pensionable paysoll The conirbutions are
datermined by the Government Actuary on the basls of quadrennial valuationg using & prospeciive
unlt eradit medhiod. TPS s an enfundad mult-amolsyer scheme with no undarlying ass=ts 1o asagn
babween employers, Conseguently, the TPS iz trealed &s & defined contribution schame for
atcounling purposes and the contrlbutions recogrised in the penod ko which they relate.

Tra LGPS & & lunded mulll-amployer scharme aad the assats are hald separately from those of the
Acadamy In sepatale brusles sdministered funds, Pension echeme assels are measured af fair velue
and babilies are measured on an actusrial basia using the projected unit credif method and
diecounted st & rafe egurvalent bo the current rate of retwrn on a high guality corporate bond af
aquivalent term and cuency to the labilibes. The actuarial valvations are obtained at leas! irennaty
and are updsiled al mach Balance Sheel dale. The amounts chargad bo operabng sumples ere the
curran! senvice costs and the costs of scheme inlroduclons, benafit changes, settlemanie and
curtailments, They are Inciuded as part of stall costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
banafl liablty'assel is 8lso raccgnisad in the Siatement of Financial Aztivitles and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benehl obligation and interest income on the scheme assets. caloulated
oy miltiplying the fair value of tha schema assets at the beginning of the period by the rals used (o
diszount v benafil obligations. The diffarance betwaen fhe interest incomea o the scheme assels
and the acheal refufn on the scheme assels is recognised in other recognised gains and kosses

111 Fund aczounting

Unrestrizted income funds represant thase resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objacts of the Academy af the discretion of the Directors.

Resiricted fioad aszset funds are resources whizh ang to be apphed 1o epecili: capital purposes
imposad by the lundare whars (he assat acquired or created is hald for & specific purpose

Resirctad ganaral funds comprige all other resincied funds received wilh réairictons impesed by tha
funderidanar and inchode grants frem the Education and Skills Funding Agency, Dapartmeant for
Education and Local Authary

Critlcal accounting astimates and areas of jJudgment

Accautling estmates and judgements are continually evaluabed and are based on hisiordcal expatenca
and other factors, Including expectations of future avants that are balisved to be reascnable under the
circumsiances

Crifical accounting estimates and assumptions:

Thie trust makes estimates and sssumplions concerreng the fubure, The resulting Bccouniing estmates
and essumplions will by definlfion, ssldam equal the related aciual results. The estimatas and
assumplions that hawa a significani rsk of causing a materdal adjusimeni io the carryng amaunts of
asseis and liabilties within the next fnancial year are discussed below

Tha pragent value of tha Local Govemnmend Penslon Scheme defined benefit Eabilty deperds on a
number of factors that are determingd on &n actuasal basis using a vately of assumplions. The
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HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

agsumptions used In detarmining ihe net cost or incoma for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumplions, which are disdlosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amcunt of the
persion liakiity, Furthermore a roll forward approach which projecis resulls from (he [atest full actuanal
valuation parformed at 31 March 2012 has been used by tha actuary in valuing the pensions kahility at 31
August 2022, Any dilerences between the figures derived from the roll forward approack and a full
actuarial valualion would impact on the carrying amount of the pension kabiity,

Goodwin - The case related to male spouse or civil partner of & fémale member i3 ireabed in the same way
A% A sams-5ex Spouse or cvil partner, Surviver benafits will be calculated using senvice from 1 April 1872,
orS April 1978 I the mariage or civil painershap oo place afer tha last day of pensionable service. This
change will apply for deaths in respact of female members which cccurred from 5 Decernber 2005, which
ia the date thai same-sex civil parinerships were infroduced. This case was brought against the Teachers'
Pansion Schame, Actuaries have estirmaled that the impact of Goodwin indecation to bae lass than §.1% of
Fotat ligkifties. Bagad on this estimate & would increage liabilites by £4,000 which has been msgesaad o
b2 immaterial bo the financial slaterments

Dagpreciabon = Depreciabon & caleuiabed eo ae fo wnta off the cost of an ascel, less its ressdual value,
oues the seanomic life of that asset An estmate of the useful life of assats is dataded n the depreciatian
accounting paliey. The value of depreciation charge during e year was £114,000

Critrcal araas of judgeament

Land - Land iz held under 125 year leases] from Sunderland City Council and Harlepool Borough
Coungl, These assats ar ircluded on the balance sheet of the Trist due to the signaificant nsks and
rewards of ownership balaagng o the acadamy, the laase term being the major part of the aconomic life
ol the assats and (he assets being of such 8 specakeed nalure that only the academy could use Lthem
without majar modification.

Buildngs - Buldngs 8l Harl 5t Helen's and Holley Park are held under 125 year |ease|s) from Sunderana
City Cooneil and Harlepoo! Borough Council. These asssis ane included on the balance sheet of the
Trusl dus to the signficant dsks and rewards of ownarship belanging to the academy, the |easa tarm
being he major part of the aconomic e of the assets and the assets being of such a specialised nature
that ooly the scademy could use them withoul major modification.

The buidings at Ben=dict Biscop and St Peter's are cwned by the Dwham Diosese Board of Finance (the
DOBF). The academy trust otcug@es the buildings urder 8 mena licence, The licance delegates aspecis of
the management of the bulidings 1o the academy rust for the ima being but doas not vest any righls over
the buildingd 10 the agadamy rusl. The Durbam Diocese Board of Finance has given an undertaking o
the Sacratasy of State tha! they wil nal give scadamy lrust bess than two years nolice g ferminata the
pecupation of the buildngs, Having considered (he factusl mabrix under which the academy lrus! 13
accupying the buildings lhe Direclors hava concheded (hat the value of the buldings occupied by the
azadenyy rust 8t tha dals of comversson to an academy will ool be recogrisad on the balance sheat of the
acadamy irust, In addition, whilsl the occupatizn constitiies a donation in kind ta the acadzmy trust. the
Trushess constder that tha cost of cbtaining a valuation for such a donabon outweighs the expense and
lherefora no such donabon and related expenss ars included in the Statement of Financial Aotivilies.
Addibans snce conwersion funded by grant teds or from GAG have been caphalised as leasahold
improvermantis and writien olf over their scongemic liks
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Incoma from danations and capital grants

Fastrictad
Unrestricted Restricled  fives agset Tatal Tatal
fumnds Fumds funds funda funds
20232 2022 2022 2022 2021
(il ELOD EQOD EQ00 £000
Donations
Incoma an Conversion 437 (781) 2,163 1,840
Income on fransfar #8 168 1. 783 1,958 .
Subtotal datailed disclosure AR5 [B33) 3548 A,BOR
Oiher Donations 2 17 15 7
Capial Grants - - T 74 b |
Subtatal F o i7 74 63 23
487 (E806) 4020 3801 23
e _——— e ————
Total 2021 . 2 21 23
—— _E e
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Funding for the Academy's charitable activities

Lirresincted Resincled Total Tatal
funds funds funds funda
2022 2022 L 2021
E00Q £440 £000 EQOQ
Academy's educational sperations
DIE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 2458 2 458 1811
Cithar DIE/ESFA grants
Eiart Up Grants - 25 25 -
Paugll Fragsmiwm - a7 107 £5
PE end Spoet Pramivm - 52 5¢ 52
LILFER = 1] 101 &7
Fates - T 7 8
Insurance - . 2 .
Teachars pay gran - FJ F) 22
Teachara' panaion grand - & 8 (=1}
Other DHEFESFA grants - 148 148 19
7908 Faos 7109
Othar Government grants
EEN - 4T 47 74
Early Years Funding - 32 333 264
Local authority grans - af o8 4
Other governman granis - 2 2 .
- 437 437 348
Cther Income from the academy trust's
educalional operations 141 . 141 g0
COVID-19 additional funding (DFEIESFA)
Cach-up Pramium - B g a2
(rher DIEFESFA COVID-13 funding . ) Z 1
10 10 a3
COVIO-1 % additional funding (ron-
DFfEIESFA)
Ciliver COWI0=19 funding - 18 15 T
15 15 7
144 3.370 3511 2 588
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Funding for the Academy’s charitable activities {eontinued)

Teaching school hub
DIE/ESFA granis - 170 B | =
Hher Government granis - - - a0
Other ingama - 117 117 .
287 287 ag
d1 1. 657 T 2 865
—— —_
Total 2021 90 2570 2 B85
— — e
Income from other trading activities
Unrestriciad Tatad Talal
funds farvds funds
2022 03z 2021
£000 [ £AO00
Mon shudent cataring income i i |
Rental and lattings income 5 & 4
Receipts from Supply Teacher Ingurance claims F T 0
QDthar 162 153 79
175 175 104
S ——————
Testal 2021 104 10l
—_————
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Expenditure

Expenditure on fundraising
rasing adivilies:
Allaeated support costs
Academy's educstionsl
Gparations

Direct costs

Allacaled supoor ooats
Direct costs - Teaching schoal
ks

Direct cosls

Aliocated support costs

Total 2021

In 2022 of he lotal expandilure, £243.000 (2021; £

Slalf Cosis Pramizes Othet Total Total

L 2033 2022 2022 2021

B0 EQOD EQQO ECOD EDDD

. 2 -

2344 . i 2885 2028

14 £y [:] 21 1285 a52

123 - 4 127 B

45 B 7 131 26

3331 334 825 4480 2 5860

_—— e _  =_=———
2.184 L 2,960
L — — = L ——— |

(2021 £2 854,000) was 1o rastrcied funds.

There were no individual ransactions exceeding £5 000 fer

= Compensalion payments
« Gilts miada by the st

- Fined asset losses

- Biock losses

- Unrecaverable debis

« Cash lossas

Analysis of expenditura by activities

Arademy' s educational cosrations
Direct costs - Tesching school hub

Tetal 2021

86, 000) was 1o unrestrictad funds and £4,392 000
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Suppart Talal Total
Ciract Cosis oasis funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
£0a0 EQ0D EDOD £0400
£.885 1.255 £ 20 2880
127 13 258 ED
3,083 1,348 4 478 2 S50
_eeme——mm—— mee——— e ]
2082 B78 2,880
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
(& Company Limitad by Guararntes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysls of direct costs

Acadamy's
educaticnal Teaching Taota! Total
gperations  school hub funds furnds
o022 2022 2022 2021
£000 £000 000 £000
Staff costs 2. 7TE4 123 2877 1.833
Educabonal supplies 180 - 180 108
Staff development 28 - 28 14
Tnﬂ*rﬂe:-g-y COSts ! = 3 12
Educalional cansultancy 20 ] 20 12
Staff enpenses s . 5 &
Transpor i .
Other cirect costs i 2
25965 127 3,082 2 028
e e—————
Total 2021 2028 L] 1,082

mEm———— e
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs
ALBOEMYE
educational Teaching Total Total
operaticns  schood hub funds Punds
2022 2022 2022 2021
E000 E0OD E0OQ E000
Pergion financs casls 33 - 33 15
Suppor! slafl cosls 408 45 454 251
Dapreciation 114 - 114 7
Technology costa BB . 58 ar
Staff expensas B i g -
Supply meurance n - KR L
Transoon 1 - 1 5
Premises cosis G = i A3
Cleaning 42 - 42 7O
QOther premizas costs 48 - 44 a3
Energy fis - G4 34
Rent and ratas 7 | 15 =
InSuranse 12 - 12 10
Operatng ieasa rantals g : 2 g
Catering 145 - 143 111
Leanl cogtg - afhar aa - =1a] i
Sacunty 2 = 2 4
CHher supped cosiE 118 6 104 Z =]
GoveInancs cosls 1d - 16 ¥y 4
1.258 131 1,385 g52
r—
Tokal 2024 B52 26 B7E
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
et income!{axpanditura)

het Incomal{sxpenddure) for tha year includas

2022 2021
EQQD E0a0
Cparabing lease renlals & ]
Depreciation of tangible fixad assels 114 Ta
Loss on disposal of ixed assals - |
Fees paid to suditons for!
= auail 10 o
= OiNEr sanvices 1 1
Seaff
a, Slaff cosis

Staff coste during the year were as follows

2022 2021

£000 E03D

VWages and salarias 22582 1.524

Social secunty coeln 212 140

Pansion costs 313 8516

A27F 2,178

Agarcy staff cogts 18 B
Staff restruchuring cosis 38 -

b e & 2184

Inciuded i aperating costs of defined pension schemes s a charge of £358.000 (2021 £185.000)
relating ta the pension deficit aclurial adjustimeanl

SEMY rasbruchuting cosls comprise

2022 20241

EDDO £030
Severance paymenls 18
38

———m ———————y’

The academy trust paid 1 Severance payment during the year, This payment was in tha £25 001 ta
E50,000 band

b. Non-statutory/mon-contractual staff severance paymants

Incheded in staff restructuring cosis are special severance payments tatalling £25, 000 This related 1o one
Fﬂﬂﬂ 459
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A Campany Limited by Guarantag)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENMDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Staff (continued)

b. Non-statutary/non-contractual staff severance paymants (continued)
individual payment of £25 000

c. Staff numbars

Tha avaraga number of persons employed oy the Academy duting the yaar was as follows

2022 2021

ko, Mg

Teachar a0 148
Adritistration and Support 48 40
Managamant & &
g4 Ga

—_—

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employéss whose employee benefits [axcluding employer pension Lo6lE) exceadad
60000 was

2022 2021

Mg, Mo

In ihe Eand £60.001 - ET0.000 2 s

Iri the band £70,0007 - £80 000 = 1
In the band £40,001 - £90.000 i N

—— ——

. Kay management personnal

Thé key menagement persennel of the Academy comprise the Directors and the senior managemani

leam m3 kaled on paga 1. The iotal amount of employae benslits (including employer pension
contributions and employer natonal insurancs cantribulions) receivad by key management parsarnal for
their senvicas o (he Acadamy was EI0S 000 (2051 - £539 onaj.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENCED 31 AUGUST 2022

Central services

The Acagemy has providad the following central sanvices te its scademies during the year

HR adwvice and irbunal insurance
payrall

fitance (accounting/audit services, budpeting softwara)
MAT governance

safeguarding

health ang safaty

trust wabsila hasting

OPO BLA

HC0 registratan

CEQ parlormanca manggemanl
school imgrevemend

The Acadermy charges lor thesa senvices on the lollowing bass
= flal percentege of GAG income 6%

The actusl smounts eharged during the year were g3 follows

Hart Prmary Schoal

51 Peter's Elwick C of E Primary Schaol
Benedict Biscop C of E Academy

5t Helans Primany School

Helley Fark Academy

Directors' remuneration and expenses

2022 2021
EQCD £000
33 30
29 26
B4 -k
16

B -
163 109
e mE—

Cne or more Directors nas besn pad remunéralion o has recalved other banelits fram an employmant
with thia Acadamy Tha principal and other staff Direciors only receive remunaration in rezpect of services
thay provide undertaking thie roles of principal and staft membars under their contracts of emplayment

The vaive of Direclors’ remunaration &nd othar banefis was as follows

J Heaton, {&ccounting Officer, CEQ) Remunetabon

Fenson contritudiong paid

2022
E000

a0 - a5
15-20

2021
E000
TE - 80
15-20

During the year, trustees were reimbursed £1.000 (2021 £n) in travel expanses. No alhsr sxpansss

were reimbursed to trustees
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Campany Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Directors’ and Officers’ lnsurance

The Academy has opted inta the Department for Educabon's risk protection arrangament (RPA), an
alternstive 1o msurance where UK governmient funds cover losses thal arise, This scheme protecis
Directors and officers from claima asising from megligent acls, erors or omissiors accuring whilst an
acedamy business, and provicas cover up to £90, 000,000 It is not poseitde ta quantify the Directors and
afficers indemnity alamant from tha averali cost of the RPA acherne membership

Tanginla fived asaats

Cost

Al Beptambar 2024
Agdtions

Transter from existing
asadenty Inast
Aequired G Camwersion

Al 21 August 2022

Dapraclation
Ml 1 Septemibesr 2021
Charge for {he year

AL 31 August 2022

MNet book valua

ALY August 2022

Af 31 August 2021

Leasahoid
Leasahald buildings Furrilura,
landand improvament  Computer fittings &
buildings 5 aquiprmien agupmenl Total
Eooan EQOD EQ00 £000 £000
1446 255 203 I3 £,230
& 2 60 5 &5
1,765 - 15 | 1,783
2183 - - - 2,183
5 aT4 2549 283 381 5337
Ba 39 160 343 B35
&3 T 40 d 114
156 46 400 347 745
& 21B 253 g3 34 5.588
—_—— —————
1,353 280 45 ag 1.881
.
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14, Transfer of existing academics into the academy
Hollay Park Acadsmy
Valie
reporiad by

fransfecning  Transler in
bust  recognisad

£000 £000
Intangible assets
Tangible fixed assats
Long-term easahald propeny |.TE5 1.765
Furmfure and egqupmant 3
Computer eguipment 15 15
currant assets
Dabtars dus within ane vear 4g 48
Cash at bank and In hand KR ] 312
Liakilities
Creditors due within ene year 105} {105
Pensions
Pensions - pension scheme liahiities [40) (40
Nat asaats 1,005 1659

e —
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
(A Campany Limited by Guarantes)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Conversion to an academy trust

Un 1 May 2022 5t Hedens Frimary School converted 1o academy 1rust status under the Academiss Act
2010 and al the operations and assels and kabilites wers transfered to Nortnern Lights Laaming Tras!
fram Harlepool Barough Council for £NIL consideration

The trarsfar has bean accounfed for as @ combington that ks in substance a gifi. The assets ang
liabifities transferrad ware valued 3% {heic far valus and recognised in the Balance Shes| under tha
apprapriate heading with & corresponding net amount recognizsed as a net gain in the Statament af
Financial Actvities as Income from Denations and Capital Grants - transfer from Jocal sutharity on
EarvErgan,

Tre following table sets out the fair values of the ideniifisbis a3sets aqd liakilites kransferred and an
analysia of their recognition in tha Stalemant of Financizl Aslivlias.

Restracbed
Linrestrictad Rastricted  Yixed asset Tatal
funds Tunds furds funds
£000 £Q0D EQ00 £0310
Tangible fixed assats
Lagsehodd land and builtdngs - - 21683 4163
Current assets
Cash - representing budgat surplus on
LA Funds 437 ® . 437
Pension liabiliy . (ra1) . {741)
Mot assetef(liabilinies) £37 (T81) 2,163 1,508

Dabiors
2022 2021
EQDQ EOX
Due within one yaar
Trade debboo Er 41
Prepayments and accrued incoma 1,083 54
“at recoverstis 133 53
1,309 153
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limitad by Guarantaa)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade crediions

Other taxation and socisl security
Other creditors

Accruass and deféired mcome

Dafared income al 1 Seplembar 2021
Resources defemad during tha yaar
Amounis reéleased from previous periods

Defarred income at 31 August 2022

2022 20021
£000 £004
143 B2
77 a3
B3 =]
223 108
528 3B
2022 021
EQDQQ £000
an 40
1 3s
(38} (40)
B3 ]

At the year end the academy wae holding universal Infant frée school meals and ratas rebef grants relatng

o il next acadamic year
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNIMG TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Staternant of funds

Balance at 1 Balance a4
Saplamber Gaing! 31 August
2021 Income  Expanditurs (Lessas) 2022
£000 EDon £000 E00n E000
Unrestricted funds
Gansral Fusnds 457 &03 (39 2 1,214
Restricted general funds
General Aanual Grants((RaS) a0 4,458 12 538} - -
Pugil Premium - 107 {107 - -
Qther IME/ESFA Grants 7 343 {350 . -
Qtner Governmanl Granls = 340 1380 - -
BEM - W {471 a
Other DIES ESFA COVID-10
hicluig - 10 (10 =
Othar COVID-19 Funding - 15 115) s “
Teaching Hub . 287 (254) - a3
Canaians - 17 (17} - =
Transfer from exisling academy
trust - 208 (08| - -
Fension resenve (1457 [831) {381) 812 |7
(1.370) 3.0 (4327 2412 {34y
Restricted fixed asset funds
Infeeried on conversion 1,353 3. T3R8 (&0 5031
OHE group cagstal grants L 43 (17} - 116
Capfal expanditure from GA5 265 183 1271 . 427
Local sudharity capital grants . 50 {10 E 40
1.707 4 020 1114) 5613
Total Restricted funds 337 .07 {4 4419 2612 g 570
Total funds 787 7874 (4,480 2812 B a3
S —_ _——a—
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantas)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Etatement of funds (conlinued)
The epacific purposes far which the funds are to be agpiied are as folows

The Genaal Annual Grant (GAG) musl ba used for the narmal running of the academy Fcluding salarfes
and related costs, overheads, repairs and mainlenance, and nsurance

Fupd Premium is additionsl funding to be spent as the school sees it 1 support deprived studerts

Universal Infant Free Schoel Meals (included wihin Othar DE/ESEA Grants) is funding i pravide a frae
schoal kunch to a8l pupils in reception, year 1 .and year 2.

Qther IE/ESFA Grants also inchades the PE and spart pramium grant, rates ralisf {sachers pay grant
Bng feachess penson grant

Teaching Hub incama is for tha establishmant of a 1#aching hub and its ongoing costs

Other Government grants mcluda Early Years funding for thres and four year old chidrer, funding for
puplls with Speclal Educational Needs and ofhar income fram tha local autharity.

Covid-18 funding is income received to enable the Trust b cover engonng cosls of casch-up leaming for
the pupils

Thﬂ n--‘lﬁhn reEarvas i e |I=|hﬂlf:|l dius te e debicit on the an| GWUrnmEﬂl F"l‘.'ﬁsil:ll'l Crheme Futhar
details are shawn in nokp 24

Tne resincied fixed asse! funds repressnt monies received ba purchase fixed assets. Depreciation &
chargad against éach fund ever the useful economic Ife of the associated assaly

Unrasircled funds include the inceme from unifarm seles, ssheal inps and catenng with he relavant cosis
allocated accordingly

Under the funding agreement with the Secralary of State the Academy wes aof subject toe imit on the
amaunt of GAG it eould cary forward at 31 August 20232
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantas)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2022

Statement of funds (continued)

Cemparative infarmation in respect of the preceding yaar is as foliows:

Balance at Balanca a
1-Saptember Tranafars Gaina! 31 Auguet
iggg Income  Expanditure infou [LossEs) 2021
EQGO EODD £000
Unrestricted e e
funds
Ganteral Funds 320 13 =11 - - 450
Restricted
general funds
Genaral Annual
Grants{GAG) 110 1.811 {1.818) 122) - 8O
Pupil pramium ) B8 1B5) . -
Cibher OFES
ESFA Grants 12 233 (238) )
Hher
Gavarnment
gamis 14 72 (2BE) .
S5EN - T4 [Fd) -
CEVID19 caich-
up premivm a2 {3} " - .
Other O fE!
ESFA Covid
Tumdimg 1 i) - - -
Oher Cowid
funding T i - -
Teaching School BD (80 . . -
Fension Msana 11,148} - (214} - (35} i, 1.457]
(1.0 575 (2818} {22] 145 (1,370
Restfictad fixed
asset funds
Inhamad an
CRMVEIEIOn 1387 - (34} 1,353
OFE group .
capital granis a5 A (17} - a1
Capizal
expengilure frem
GAG 268 - 125] 22 - 265
1,740 21 {76 22 = 1.707
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENCED 31 AUGLIST 2022

Statemant of funds (continued)

Batance 3t Balance at
1 September Transfers Gans' 31 August
2020 Inzome  Expenditure infoud (Logaes) 2021
£0D0 EQ00 E0Q0 £000 EQOQ £000

Total Restricted
funds 733 2 508 (2 B24) - (55} g
Total funds 1.0s0 2792 (2.980) . {945) TET

e

Total funds analysls by academy
Fund balances at 31 Augist 2022 were allocated as follows

2z 2021
£000 E000
Har Primary Schogl 122 142
5t Peter's Ewick G of E Primary School 104 118
Benedict Biscop € of E Scademy 242 251
ot Helens Primary School 433
Hollay Park Acadamy 247
Teaching hub i3
Ceniral servicas 66 25
Total bafere fixed assat funds ard pension raserve 1,247 37
Aesincied lixed asset fund 5613 { TOT
Fansion resere &T) (1.457)
Total 5,783 Tar
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A Company Limited by Guarantese)

NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
Statement of funds {continuad)
Total coat analysis by academy

Expanddture incurred by each acadermy during the vesr was as lalaws

Teaching
and
#ducational Oither Cther costs
suppor staff suppon staf  Educational exzluding Tedal Tatal
Coglg CosE 8uppligs  depreciation 2022 2021
EQ0Q E0C ECO0 £000 £000 EQ0D
Harl Commhinity
Primary  Schogl 433 48 29 141 B3 L]
51 Patar's Elwvick
Col E Schaol 400 48 28 113 LEa 353
Banedic! Bscop
C of E Acadermy 855 123 &3 304 1458 1.268
St Helens
Primary Scagal 408 26 2 85 £17 .
Hallay Park
Academy 135 55 2 25 218 =
Central services 414 1048 - 158 B 324
Teeching hub 122 46 ¥ L 256 B0
A adeimy 24877 424 130 aEs 4. 250 2,884
HE——— e — —_— [ —
Analysis of net assels between funds
Analysis of net assets batwoen funds - currant year
Rasirictad
Unrasiricted Restricted  fived agset Tadal
funds funds fumicls furids
2022 2022 2022 2022
EGOD £040a E000 ECD
Tangible fized assats - - 5588 5 534
Current assats 1,740 33 25 1,798
Creditors ous wihin one year (535 - - (525
Provisions for liabidies and charges - (BT} &7}
Total 1,214 (34} 5813 8,793
-~ e el ——————— ]
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HNORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTESE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Restrcied
Linrestricied Restricted fixed assat Tadal
funds Tunds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2081
EQDD £000 E0GO £ 00
Tangitle fixed assets - - 1.681 1681
Curment assels 450 408 15 BT
Creddors due within one year - (A18 (315}
Prowvisians for liabilities and charges - (1457} [1.457]
Tatal 450 [1.370) 1,707 7a7y
e e
Reconcillation of net Incomal{expenditure) to nat cash flow from operating activities
2022 a2t
£o0a £G4
Met incorme/{expenditure) for the year (Bs per Statement of Financial
Activities) 3384 {168)
Adjustmeants for:
Dapraciatan 114 e
Canital grants fram DIE and other capital income {118) (21}
Defined banefit penision schema oblgation inheritad A3 -
Defined benafit pengicn schama cast legs contnbulens payabla 358 168
Defined baneflt pension schame finance cosd 33 1§
Increase n deblors [B25) (G5]
(Decrease)incraase i craditors (24 53
Loss on discosal - ]
Aszeis inherited on camversion 12,163}
Assets tranaferrad from exsting academy [rust 1,733
Net cash {usad in)Vprovided by operating activities [2B1) g2
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
iA& Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Cash flows from Investing activities

Purchaze of langible fixed assels
Capita! grants from DFE Group

Mat cash provided byfjused in] Investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Caagh in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysls of changes in net debtl

Lash at bank and ir hand

Penslon commitments

2022 2021
Qoo Ea0
(53] (31}
116 21
&1 {10
2022 2021
000 £000
£39 g
4 Ta
At 1
Saplember &5 31 August
2021 Cash flows 2022
ECa0 EQ00 EQN)
Tig (23 489
Tia {230} 4EG
=  ——————

Tha Academiy's emplayess belong fo two pringipal pension schemas the Teachers' Persion Scnoma
England and Wales (TPS; for atadamic and refpied stal and the Loeal Govarnment Pansion Schsma
(LGPS]) for non4eachieg staff, which is managed by Tyne and Wear and Teesside Pension Eunda Bath

are multi-employer defined benefit schemes

The pension cosls are assessed In accorddce with the edvice of independani gualifad sciuaries. The
Istast sctuanal valation of the TOS relatad to the pariod ended 31 Maseh 2016, and that of she LEPS

relaiad bo the period ended 31 March 2018

Contrbubons amounting fo £82.000 were payable io the schemes ai 31 Pugust 2022 (2021 - £38 000)

and are included within craditars
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Fensian commitments [continuad)
Teachers' Pension Schama

Introduction

The Teachers' Penscn Schame (TPS) is a statutory, cantributary, defired benefil scheme, govarned by
ihe Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Mambership is aulomatic for ful-lime t=achers in
academies. All teachers have the option 1o opt-out of the TPS following snralmant.

The TPS iz an unfunded scheme to which bolh the member and erpiyer makes contributions, 83 8
parcéniage of salary - these conlrioutions are credited to the Exchequer, Retirement and cther pansion
banefits are paid by pubdic funds pravided by Parfiament,

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal agtuarial principies, conducts & farmal actuarial review of the TPS
In ecoordance with the Pubbc Service Pensians (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directons 2014
published by HM Treasury every & years. The aim of tha review is to spacify the level of fulure
coniribulions. Actuarial scheme valuabons are dagendent an Besumplions abau the valua of futire casts,
dhesign of benefits and many ciher faclors. The Latest actuarial valuation of tha TES was camed out &% al
31 Marsh 2016, The valuabion repart was published by the Departmant for Education on 5 March 2018,

The key elemants of the valuation and subsequent consuliation are

" empiayer condribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay [including 8 0.0B% a#dministrabion
lavyl

. tal schame Babiltles (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cast of future benelits) for
sarvice ta the effectve date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estmated future contributions
tagather with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £186,100 million, giving 4
rotional past service daficit of £22, 000 milicn

* e BCARE rate, sal by HMT, is used fo determing the national investment return. The current
BCAPE rale i 2.4% sbove the rate of CPI. essumed real rate of raturn is 2 4% in sxcess of prices
and 2% in excass of eamnings. The rate of real EArmngs growth i3 assurmed fo Be 72%. The
assumed nominal rata of ralurm including earnings growth is 4,255

The naxt veduation resull is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023
The employer's pansion costs peed to TPS in the year amaounted to £329 000 (2021 - E234 0060
Under the defnilions set out in FRS 102 the TPS i an unfundad mulli-employar pension schama, The

Acagerty has accounled for As contributions 1o the scheme a8 if it were a dafingd contrbution schema,
The Academy has set out above the information available an the schamsa
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 20232

24.  Penslon commitments (continued)
Loeal Gavernmaent Penslon Schames

The LGPS iz a funded defined bensfit pension schame, with the zssels hald in sepiiEla frusies
adrninistered funds. The 1otal contribution made far the year anded 31 August 2022 was £174.000 {2021
£118,000). of which employer's contributions tofalled 126,000 (2021 - EBB.00D) and emphoyees’
contrbutions totalied £48.000 (2021 - £33 000), The agreed contribution rates for future years are 17.5%
for employers and 5.5% = 12.5% for employass

As cescribed in note 15 the LGPS obligation relates to the employess of the Academy, who wera the
employees transferred as pan of the conversion from the maintained school aad naw empiayeses who
were elighis I3, and did. join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect af amployeas who
transferred on conversien represents their cumulative service at both the pradecessar scheal sad the
fcademy at the belance shest date

Paclament has agreed, &t the request of the Secretary of State for Education 19 & guaranlee that, in the
avent of academy closure, outstanding Local Govemment Pension Schame habilites wolild be mat by e
Deparimen for Education. The gusrantss came info force on 18 July 2043,

Pringipal actuarial assumplions

Teasside Pension Fund

22 2021

% b

Rate of increase in salarles 4. DF 16
Rate of incraase fogr panssens inpaymentinflation 3.05 i8
Discount rate Tor scheme labiihas 475 |7
infiation agsumotion (CP) 4.05 25
Commutation of pensians 1o lump sums .00 80,00

eSS ]

The current merality assumptions nclude suflicient aliowance for futse impravements in martakty ratas,
The assumad |fe expectations on rekrement age 65 are

2022 2021
Yeans Years
Retiring today
Males 21.7 218
Femalas 23.5 236
Ratiring in 20 years
kales 22.9 23.3
Females 253 23.4

T, e
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t AUGUST 2022

Fenglon commitments [continuad)
Ty and Wear Pangion Fund
2022 021
% W
Rala of increase |n salaries 4.3 4.1
Rate of increase for pensions in paymendinflaton 27 26
Discount rate far scheme labidities 4.0 1.7
Infiaton assumptian (CPI) 2.7 £6
Commutation of pansions to lump sums 75.00 7800
e
The currant madality assumptions include sufficient alkswance for future improvements in martality rates,
The assumed e expaciations an retirement age 65 ars
2022 20
Years ¥Years
Ratiring today
Malas 21.8 218
Females 250 251
Ratifing In 20 years
Mszles 235 236
Famalen 26T 268
e
Sensitlvity analysis
Schema liabiMies would have been affected by changes in assumplans as foliows
2022 2021
£000 E030
Dizcounl rale +0.1% (122} (102)
Discount rate -0.1% 125 108
Martalily assumption - 1 yeas incraass (133 (123
Martality assumption - 1 year decreass 130 125
CHF rape +0.1% 102 Ba
CPl rat= -0 1% {102) {87
—
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WORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
4. Pansion commitments (continued)
The acadomy trust's share of the assets In the scheme

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was

2022 2021
£000 E000
Equites £33 1.157
Govarament bonds 35 25
Corpacate bonds 250 238
Prapedy 534 141
Cash and other liquid asssts 240 28
Cihar aesety ER E: 154
Tetal market value of assels 3,915 {.A14
—_— —
The aclual raturm on scheme aseels was £64,000 (2021 - £290,000),
The amounts recognised ;m the Siatemant of Financial Aetivites are a3 lallaws
2022 2021
E000 EO0
Cument service cost fagaj (281)
Interest incoma W 23
Inferest ool (59) [4d)
Tetal amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (5171 (300
—_— . ———
Changes in the present valus of the defined benefil abligatans were as fliows
202z 2021
£000 EQOQ
At 1 Septambear 2021 3,271 2,569
Conversion of ackdemy usls 1,522 -
Transfarrad in on exisbrig acadamiss fining the trust 1,180 -
Currant gervice cost 4B4 281
Infarest oot &0 44
Employeze contributions dE 33
Actuania! (gans)losses (2584 360
Bensdits pand i8] [ 18]
AL Angusl 2022 3,982 3,271
—m— e
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantas)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2022
24.  Pension commitments {continued)

Changes in the fair valus of the Azademy's share of scheme assels were a3 follaws:

2022 2021

E0DQ E0O0
At 1 September 2021 1,884 1,421
Conversion of academy trusts 731 .
Transferred in on existing academias jalning the frust 1,140
Interest incomes 36 28
Actuanal gaing 28 265
Employer contnbubions 126 BE
Employes contribulions 45 a3
Bensfis paid L2 H) (18]
At 31 August 2022 3815 1814

28.  Qporating lease commitments

At 21 August 2022 the Academy had commitmeniis to make future minimum [aase paymenis under non-
cancelable oparating lasses s follaws:

2082 2021

EQOG £000

Smounts dus within ong mr 2 g
Amounts due i two and five years i 2
2 7

26, Members' lability

Each member of the chardabls company undertakes 1o contnbule 1o 1he assets of thé company in the
evant of it being wound oo whils heishe = 8 member, or within cna yeat after ha'she ceasss 1o be a
member. Such amaunt as may be required. not expesding £10 for the debls and kabltias contrartad
before mejshe coases io he a mambar
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
& Company Limitad by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Related party transactions

Qwing lo the nature of the Trust and the coemposition of the Baard of Directars being drawn from local
public and private sactor organisations, transactions may take place with erganisations in which the
directars have an Inlerest. Al transachons mvolving such erganisations are eandustad in accardance with
the requirerments af the Academies Financial Handbook, ncluding notifying the ESFA of all iransactions
made an or aftar 1 Agril 2018 and abtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's finarscial
regulations ard normal pracurement procedurss refating fo connected and relatad padty transactiong,

Experditire refated oarty (ransaciions

Jacesans Law — a company in which P Clark was a parner

The academy trust purchased HR and employmand advize from Jacksons faw tofalling £944
{2021 £4.B00) during the peried, The amount cutstanding at 31 August 2022 was Enil (2021 Enil)
Tha scademy trust made the purchase at ama’ length foliowing a compalbiiive lendafing avercizs
in accardance with s financial regulstions, which P Clark neither participated in. noe influemead

In @nlaring into the rangaction the academy trust has complind wih the raquireameniz af tha
Academy Trusl Handbook 2021

Schocls Morth East— a businass in whizh J Haates i5 a Directar

The academy trusl puschases HR and emplayrment advice fram Schools Martr East totalling £714
[2021: Endy dunng 1he penicd. The amaunt cuts:sndng at 31 Augus! 2022 was Enil (2021
Enily
" The academy bust mace ihe purchase at arms' langth foliowing a sompelitve lendering exémise
inaccordande with fs financist reguiatians, which J Haatan nailher partcipated in, nor influenced
- In entening Into the transaction the academy trust has camplisd wish the raquiremanis of (ke
Academy Teust Handbook 2021

Emmerson Markaling - a business in whizh M Emmearson, a Trugles uatl 15 Mavember 2021 holds an
intarest,

The academy trust purchased HR and employment advice from Emmarzan Marketing totalling

E2200 (2021 Enit) during the penod. The amount outslanding &1 31 August 2022 was Enil (2021
Enrily

4 Tha scademy trust mada the purchase at ams’ langlh following & compatitve kendering exercice
i accordange with its financial regulations. which M Emmersan neither parbcipaled in, nos
influenced

= I endering inta the transaclion the acedermy trust has comphead with tha requirsmiants of fne
Academy Trust Handbock 2521

nesma ral tHansachons

- Luring he year th academy {rest recaved £85 from Schools Norh Easl & Buziness in which J
Haaton 2 a Direckar

1 entering nio tese transactions. the acadermy trust has complied with she requiremants of the
Acadermy Trust Handbook 2021
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